
 

 
                                  

 
 

AGENDA 

 

 

For a meeting of the 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
to be held on 

THURSDAY, 26 JUNE 2014 
at 

2.00 PM 
in the 

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ 

Beverly Agass, Chief Executive    

 

Committee 
Members: 

Councillor Jean Bevan, Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, 
Councillor Trevor Scott, Councillor Rob Shorrock, Councillor 
Ian Stokes (Chairman), Councillor Jeff Thompson and 
Councillor Martin Wilkins 

  
Committee Support 
Officer: 

Jo Toomey Tel: 01476 406152 
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 
Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below. 
 

1. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 

 The Committee will elect its vice-chairman for the municipal year. 
  
2. MEMBERSHIP 

 
 The Committee to be notified of any substitute members. 
  
3. APOLOGIES 

 
  
4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

 
 Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 
  



5. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 MARCH 2014 
 

  (Enclosure) 
  
6. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
  
7. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2013/14 

 
 Report of internal audit. (Enclosure) 
  
8. ADHERENCE TO PUBLIC SERVICE INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARD 

 
 Report number HOF279 by the Head of Finance. (Enclosure) 
  
9. INTERNAL AUDIT TRACKING REPORT 

 
 Report of Internal Audit. (Enclosure) 
  
10. RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 

 
 Report number HOF278 by the Head of Finance. (Enclosure) 
  
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF 

SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 
 

  
 



 

MINUTES 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 13 MARCH 2014 
 

 

 
 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 

  
Councillor Jean Bevan (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Trevor Scott 
Councillor Rob Shorrock 
 

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman) 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Rosemary H Woolley 
 

OFFICERS OTHER MEMBERS 

 
Strategic Director – Corporate Focus 
(Daren Turner) 
Head of Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Operations Director (Ian Yates) 
Waste and Recycling Service Manager 
(Keith Rowe) 
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey 
Elliott) 
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey) 

Councillor Paul Carpenter (Portfolio 
Holder: Governance and 
Communication) 
 
AUDIT 

 

External Audit: Mike Norman (KPMG) 
Internal Audit: Rob Barnett (Baker Tilly) 
 

 

 
 

53. MEMBERSHIP 

 
 The Committee was notified that Councillor Adam Stokes would be substituting 

for Councillor Wilkins for this meeting only. 
  

54. APOLOGIES 

 
 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Thompson. Councillor 

Mike Taylor, the Portfolio Holder for Strategic Resources – Well Run Council 
also apologised as he could not attend the meeting. 

  

55. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

 
 No interests were disclosed. 
  

56. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14 JANUARY 2014 

 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2014 were agreed as a correct 

record. 

Agenda Item 5



2 

  

57. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2013/14 

 
 Mike Norman from KPMG, the Council’s external auditor, presented the 

External Audit Plan 2013/14. He informed members that the scope of the audit 
would be the same as 2012/13 and was consistent with the Audit Commission’s 
code of practice.  
 
The audit would give an opinion on the Statement of Accounts and a value for 
money conclusion. Risk assessments on these areas highlighted one risk each: 
the triennial value of the local government pension scheme and arrangements 
for securing financial resilience in terms of delivering its medium term savings 
plans respectively. 
 
The plan outlined the four stages that would form the audit: planning, delivery, 
closure and reporting and included broad timings. Members were informed that 
changes might be necessary in-year if new risks were identified. Notification 
was also given of a change to the Audit team. 
 
Members were reassured that the risk relating to medium term financial 
planning had been raised for all councils and was not highlighted as a risk 
solely for South Kesteven. It would consider whether the council was taking 
account of significant issues and horizon scanning when planning for the 
medium term. Officers added that the Council had agreed its Medium Term 
Financial Strategy during autumn 2013, which took account of the anticipated 
medium term position and that this had formed the principles on which the 
budget and indicative budgets were based. 
 
The Committee noted the report.  

  

58. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 

 
 Mr Norman presented the Certification of Grants and Returns for 2012/13. He 

informed members that one grant (Housing and Council Tax Benefits Scheme) 
and two returns (Capital Receipts Pooling Return and National Non-Domestic 
Rates return) were certified, each amounting to a value of £39.1m. Unqualified 
certificates were issued in all three instances. 
 
Members noted that an adjustment of £3,000 (reduction) was necessary to the 
Council’s housing and council tax benefit claim. Mr Norman reported that there 
were no concerns regarding the quality of working papers or the timeliness of 
claims. 
 
The process for the setting of the fee was explained to the Committee. The 
report stated that an additional charge of £207 had been approved by the Audit 
Commission; this related to the capital receipts return because of changes to 
the requirements for this audit in 2012/13. 
 
It was expected that for formal certification of the National Non-Domestic Rates 
return the 2013/14 financial year would not be necessary. A further change was 



3 

anticipated (but not yet confirmed) in relation to council tax and housing benefit. 
 
Members noted that 2013/14 was expected to be the final year the Audit 
Commission mandated specific grant certification as it would not exist beyond 
that period. Councillors questioned whether there would be anything to replace 
this; it was not known what the Department for Communities and Local 
Government would require instead of formal certification. 

  

59. INTERNAL AUDIT OF MEMBERS' TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE CLAIMS: 

PROVISION OF INSURANCE DOCUMENTS AND APPEAL PROCESS FOR 

CLAIMS 

 
 At its meeting on 14 January 2014 the Committee received the internal audit 

report on Members’ Travel and Subsistence Claims. Recommendations that 
arose from the report were presented to Council on 23 January 2014 and were 
referred to the Governance and Audit Committee for consideration. 
 
The Chairman had carried out research, asking other Lincolnshire authorities 
about their requirements in relation to the provision of documents. City of 
Lincoln Council was the only authority that required Councillors to provide 
evidence of a valid insurance certificate including business use (together with 
driving licence, MOT certificate and vehicle registration documents). All other 
authorities included a statement in the declaration that councillors signed 
stating that the Member’s motor vehicle insurance included business use. 
 
Members established the nature of the risk: that should a councillor have an 
accident while attending to council business, either on their way to the offices 
or within their Wards, and they were not covered under their own insurance, the 
council would not become liable to settle the claim. 
 
A number of members expressed concerns about a need to amend the  
Council’s Constitution and felt that the word of the councillor should be 
sufficient to mitigate the risk to the authority so long as the insurance 
requirements were clearly communicated to all Councillors. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

• The Constitution should not be amended to require that Councillors 
provide Democratic Services with a copy of their insurance 
certificate incorporating business use 

• The new Councillor travel claim form should include in the 
declaration that the Member signs to acknowledge that they have 
appropriate insurance including business use 

• That the back of the claim form includes details of the insurance 
requirements that a member must meet 

• That the letter sent out accompanying the new claim form should 
highlight insurance requirements that a member must meet 

  



4 

60. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

 
 Rob Barnett, Senior Manager from Baker Tilly presented the Internal Audit 

Progress Report. He informed members that since their last update six reports 
had been finalised; four had been given a green opinion (consultation and 
communication – stakeholder contact; information security management 
system; allocations and lettings (including void management), and Medium 
Term Financial Strategy) and one an amber green opinion (leases). A poor 
progress opinion was given in relation to the follow-up report. Across the audit 
a total of 15 recommendations had been made (no high risk, 6 medium risk and 
9 low risk). Thirteen medium risk recommendations were still identified as 
outstanding in the follow-up report. 
 
The report provided headline findings for each audit, which Mr Barnett 
summarised, together with the medium risk recommendations that were raised, 
with an implementation deadline and the responsible officer. 
 
Specific questions raised by Councillors included proactive monitoring of ICT as 
highlighted in the audit of the Information Security Management System and 
the recommendation relating to decorating cards which arose as part of the 
allocations and letting audit. Members were notified that proactive monitoring of 
ICT would include exception reports showing staff internet usage and any 
online transactions. 
 
Decorating cards were provided to tenants; the recommendation relating to this 
concentrated on reconciliation to identify instances when vouchers were not 
used and the reclamation any surplus. Members queried the voucher system; 
whether the store for which the vouchers were valid was the most appropriate 
for the purposes of redecoration and whether there was an opportunity to 
switch to a more efficient solution than vouchers. The committee noted that the 
management comment stated that an alternative scheme provider was being 
considered. 

  

61. INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW-UP REPORT 

 
 The Senior Manager from Baker Tilly presented the internal audit follow-up 

report, which reviewed progress against the implementation of medium and 
high risk recommendations made by Internal Audit. The follow-up report gave 
an opinion that ‘poor progress’ had been made. Of the 17 recommendations 
featured in the report, 11 had not been implemented, the implementation of 2 
was ongoing and 4 were fully implemented. 
 
Revised implementation dates had been agreed for outstanding 
recommendations; progress would continue to be reviewed as part of follow-up 
reports. Discussion began with the suggestion that the report should show 
adjusted implementation dates next to the originally agreed implementation 
dates to clearly show slippage. 
 
As the majority of recommendations that had not been implemented related to 
the audit of Waste and Recycling and Fleet Management, the Operations 



5 

Director and the Waste and Recycling Service Manager were invited to make 
comment. They explained that there had been a number of considerable 
changes within the Waste and Recycling team, with recruitment for some 
positions ongoing. Officers assured members that all those recommendations 
that related to health and safety had been fully implemented. 
 
The Committee was informed that some of the recommendations in relation to 
the Waste Policy had not progressed because of the need to retender for the 
recycling contract; it was possible that the outcome of retendering could affect 
the content of the policy. 
 
Mr Rowe added that as the officer with responsibility for the refuse fleet he was 
content that the arrangements currently in place in relation to their service and 
ongoing maintenance were robust. This process combined the use of 
Roadbase for the majority of tasks with a separate system for the scheduling of 
vehicle servicing. As the appointment of key staff members was after the 
completion of the audit, officers requested the opportunity to discuss and 
review the recommendations with Internal Audit. 
 
Committee members also briefly discussed the use of pool cars; officers 
confirmed that the use of pool cars did not include personal use. The electronic 
booking system had been launched in January 2014 and incorporated the 
requirement for staff to provide details about their driving licence. Councillors 
were informed that while a policy for the use of pool cars had not been 
developed a guide was produced in association with the new booking system. 
The electronic booking system together with logs in vehicles addressed the 
issues about which the recommendations made in the audit. 

  

62. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2014/15 

 
 Mr Barnett presented the Internal Audit Plan for 2014/15. In preparing the plan 

Internal Audit had considered changes to potential risks for the year and the 
Council’s risk registers, spoken to the Committee and officers and then 
presented proposals to the directors for approval. The Committee was asked to 
consider whether it considered the plan fit for purpose and if so, to endorse the 
plan. The plan provided a brief overview of the proposed audit and more 
detailed scopes would be developed prior to the commencement of each audit. 
 
Members were reminded that changes could be made to the programme 
through the year if new risks or concerns emerged; there were also a number of 
contingency days. 
 
In response to a question, the Committee was informed that the audit of 
purchase orders was part of a cycle with other finance-related audits. Members 
were pleased that Section 106 Agreements had also been included in the draft 
audit plan.  
 
The Committee noted and endorsed the draft Internal Audit Plan 2014/15. 

  



6 

63. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
 The Head of Finance presented report number HOF269 on the Statement of 

Accounting Policies 2013/14. He informed members that there were no 
fundamental changes however a number of small changes had been made to 
reflect the latest guidance from CIPFA on local authority funding. The full suite 
of policies was attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the policies relating to termination 
benefits, which had been refreshed to improve clarity about what they were and 
when they would apply. 
 
Decision: 
 
The Committee approved the Statement of Accounting Policies to be used 
in the production of the 2013/14 financial statements. 

  

64. PENSION ASSUMPTIONS 

 
 The Head of Finance presented report number HOF270 on the underlying 

assumptions to be used to calculate IAS19 pension figures in the 2013/14 
Statement of Accounts. Information was supplied by the actuary; the latest 
information received by the authority confirmed there had been no material 
changes. 
 
The Committee was notified that at paragraph 3 of 3.8 should read “the salary 
decrease rate” and that the financial impact of the salary increase rate as 
shown in appendix 1 to the report should read: “decrease in the charge for cost 
of future pensions.” 
 
Members questioned and noted the high return on assets that was quoted in 
the figures supplied by the actuary. The Committee also acknowledged that the 
figures would be reviewed as at 31 March 2014 and updated in light of any 
material movements. 
 
Decision: 
 
The Committee approved the IAS19 (International Accounting Standard 
19) assumptions to be used in the production of the 2013/14 Statement of 
Accounts. 

  

65. CLOSE OF MEETING 

 
 The meeting was closed at 15:23. 
  

 



 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council  

Internal Audit Annual Report – Year ended 31 March 2014 

Presented at the Governance and Audit Committee meeting of: 26th June 2014 

 

 

Chris Williams 

Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP

Agenda Item 7



South Kesteven District Council | 1 

 

1. Internal Audit Opinion 

1.1 Context 

As the provider of the internal audit service to South Kesteven District Council we are required to provide the 

Section 151 Officer and the Governance and Audit Committee an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness 

of the Council’s governance, risk management and control arrangements. In giving our opinion it should be 

noted that assurance can never be absolute. The most that the internal audit service can provide is a 

reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses in risk management, governance and control 

processes. 

As your internal audit provider, the audit opinions that Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP (Baker Tilly) 

provides the Council during the year are part of the framework of assurances that assist the Council to 

prepare an informed annual governance statement. 

1.2 Internal Audit Opinion 2013/2014 

We are satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow us to draw a reasonable 

conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of South Kesteven District Council’s arrangements.  

For the 12 months ended 31 March 2014, based on the work we have undertaken, our opinion regarding the 

adequacy and effectiveness of South Kesteven District Council’s arrangements for  governance, risk 

management and control is as follows: 

 
Red     Amber   Green 

Direction of 

travel 

Governance 

Adequate and effective governance processes are in place. 

  

 

Risk Management 

Adequate and effective governance processes are in place. 

  

 

Control 

We undertook 30 internal audit reviews in 2013/14, and 

these included three follow up and two Advisory reviews. 

For the 25 reviews resulting in an assurance opinion, there 

were 15 reviews which resulted in a substantial assurance 

level being given; nine were ‘reasonable’ assurance and 

one was ‘some’ assurance. Following management 

request, additional work was undertaken around vehicle 

usage and procurement practices at the Depot and this has 

identified weaknesses in the control framework. We believe 

that an ‘Amber’ opinion correctly reflects the control 

framework currently in place. 

 

 

Note: The direction of travel arrow indicates whether the change in our opinion related to the previous year is upward (improving), 

downward (adverse) or static. 



 South Kesteven District Council | 2 

 

 
 

 

1.3 The Basis of the Opinion 

1.3.1 Governance  

We undertook a specific review of Corporate Governance during 2013/14, which focussed primarily on the 

Council’s informed decision making processes. The Council’s Constitution includes a formal Scheme of 

Delegation, detailing the responsibilities and decision making powers of both Members and Officers of the 

Council; including nominated deputies. Responsibility for recommending amendments to the Council’s 

Constitution has been delegated to the Constitution Committee.   

We are also aware from our more general audit coverage, and from our attendance at Governance and Audit 

Committee meetings that the Council has satisfactory governance arrangements in place. No significant 

recommendations were made as a result of the audit. 

1.3.2 Risk Management  

We undertook a full review of the Council’s Risk Management Framework in 2013/14, concentrating on the 

adequacy of the arrangements to identify, monitor and mitigate the risks faced by the Council. The Council 

has a documented Risk Management Strategy in place, detailing the Council’s risk methodology and attitude 

to risk.  

The Council has adopted a three tier approach to recording risks; those documented within the Corporate 

Level Risk Register, Exceptional Level Service Risk Register and Business As Usual Service Risk Register, 

allowing for both strategic and departmental risks to be identified and closely monitored. The Risk 

Management Group monitors and co-ordinates risk assessment activity throughout the Council, ensuring 

consistency in the approach taken. Risks identified at the corporate level are also monitored by the 

Governance and Audit Committee on a semi-annual basis. No recommendations were made as a result of the 

audit. 

1.3.3 Control  

We undertook 30 internal audit reviews in 2013/14, and these included three follow-up reviews and two 

Advisory reviews. For the 25 reviews resulting in an assurance opinion, there were 15 reviews (60%) which 

resulted in substantial assurance level being given; 9 (36%) where reasonable assurance was given; and 1 

(4%) where some assurance was given. In addition, an advisory review of ‘Stamford Car Parking Income’ was 

undertaken to determine whether there was an explanation for the downturn in income from Stamford car 

parks. An advisory review of ‘Staff Engagement and Communication’ was also undertaken which focused on 

compliance with the Council’s Management Pledge introduced as part of the “Unlocking Our Potential” 

agenda. Both advisory reviews did not result in an assurance opinion.  

At the request of management, we also undertook some additional work around Council vehicle usage and 

procurement practices at the Depot; our findings highlighted weaknesses and these have been referred to 

management. As at 31 March 2014, we understand that there is an on-going investigation.  

1.3.4 Acceptance of Recommendations 

All 112 of the recommendations made during the year were accepted by management.  



 South Kesteven District Council | 3 

 

 
 

 

1.3.5 Comparison of Internal Audit Opinions (Assurance assignments) in 2013/2014 compared with 2012/2013 

 

 

1.3.6 Comparison of Internal Audit recommendations made 2013/2014 compared with 2012/2013 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2012/2013 2013/2014

Green

Amber Green

Amber Red

Red

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2012/2013 2013/2014

Low

Medium

High



 South Kesteven District Council | 4 

 

 
 

 

1.3.7 Progress made with previous internal audit recommendations 

Our follow up of the high and medium risk recommendations made in 2012/13, including those that were 

outstanding from previous years, showed that the Council has made adequate progress in implementing the 

agreed recommendations, as summarised below: 

 

Recommendation 

Priority 

 

Number of High and 

Medium 

recommendations made 

in 2012/2013 

Of which: 

Addressed Not implemented or still 

in progress 

High 10 7 3 

Medium 43 34 9 

Totals 53 41 12 

In 2012/13, we raised 10 high risk recommendations of which three have not been implemented or are still in 

progress; these relate to Contract Management (Ground & Tree Maintenance) and Flexible Working 

Arrangements. The outstanding recommendations should be given sufficient attention when raised and 

accepted by management.  

1.3.8 Reliance Placed Upon Work of Other Assurance Providers 

In forming our opinion we have not placed any direct reliance on other assurance providers. 

 

2. Our Performance 

2.1 Conformance with Internal Audit Standards 

Baker Tilly affirms that our internal audit services to South Kesteven District Council are designed to conform 

with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which came in to effect from 1 April 2013. 

Under the standards, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment at least once 

every five years. During 2011 our Risk Advisory service line commissioned an external independent review of 

our internal audit services to provide assurance whether our approach meets the requirements set out in the 

International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors 

(IIA). The PSIAS are based upon the IPPF, and therefore we are confident that the results of this review apply 

to our continuing services in the sector.   

The external review concluded that “the design and implementation of systems for the delivery of internal audit 

provides substantial assurance that the standards established by the IIA in the IPPF will be delivered in an 

adequate and effective manner”. 

2.2 Conflicts of Interest 

We (Baker Tilly) have not undertaken any work or activity during 2013/2014 that would lead us to declare any 

conflict of interests. 



 South Kesteven District Council | 5 

 

 
 

 

Appendix A:  Internal Audit Opinions and Recommendations 2013/2014 

 

Audit 

 

Link to risk or rationale for 

coverage 
Opinion 

Actions Agreed (by priority) 

High Medium Low 

Pool Cars 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit 
Amber / Red 0 4 3 

Fleet Management 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Amber / Green 0 3 3 

Car Parks (Enforcement) 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Amber / Green 0 4 3 

Leisure Management 

Contract 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Amber / Green 0 3 1 

Waste and Recycling 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Amber / Green 0 4 2 

Planning 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Amber / Green 0 3 3 

Bourne Community 

Access Point 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit 
Amber / Green 1 1 2 

Members Allowances and 

Expenses   

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Amber / Green 0 2 6 

Economic Development 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Amber / Green 1 1 1 

Leases  
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Amber / Green 0 2 3 

Corporate Governance 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 0 2 

Code of Conduct 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 0 1 

Disabled Facilities Grants 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 0 1 

Income Collection 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 0 3 

Reactive Repairs and 

Maintenance 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 1 4 

Licensing   
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 0 0 

Payroll & Expenses 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit / External Audit 

Reliance 
Green 0 1 0 



 South Kesteven District Council | 6 

 

 
 

 

Absence Management 
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 1 1 

Benefits Fraud 

Investigation Unit 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit / External Audit 

Reliance  
Green 0 1 3 

Treasury Management 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit / External Audit 

Reliance 
Green 0 0 1 

Risk Management  
Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 0 0 

Consultation and 

Communications - 

Stakeholder Contact 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 1 3 

Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit / External Audit 

Reliance 
Green 0 0 1 

Allocations and Lettings 

(including Void 

Management) 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 2 1 

Information Security 

Management System 

(ISMS) 

Identified by Management / 

Internal Audit Green 0 1 1 

Follow Up of Previous 

Internal Audit 

Recommendations (1) To meet internal auditing 

standards and to provide 

management with on-going 

assurance regarding 

implementation of 

recommendations. 

Good Progress 0 1 0 

Follow Up of Previous 

Internal Audit 

Recommendations (2) 

Adequate 

Progress 
2 3 0 

Follow Up of Previous 

Internal Audit 

Recommendations (3) 

Poor Progress 0 13 0 

Stamford Car Park 

Income  
Identified by Management Advisory 0 0 0 

Staff Engagement & 

Communication 
Identified by Management Advisory 0 0 7 

 



 South Kesteven District Council | 7 

 

 
 

 

We use the following levels of opinion classification within our internal audit reports: 

Red Amber / Red Amber / Green Green 

Taking account of the 

issues identified, the Board 

cannot take assurance that 

the controls upon which the 

organisation relies to 

manage this risk are 

suitably designed, 

consistently applied or 

effective.   

Action needs to be taken to 

ensure this risk is 

managed.   

Taking account of the 

issues identified, whilst the 

Board can take some 

assurance that the controls 

upon which the 

organisation relies to 

manage this risk are 

suitably designed, 

consistently applied and 

effective, action needs to 

be taken to ensure this risk 

is managed.   

Taking account of the 

issues identified, the Board 

can take reasonable 

assurance that the controls 

upon which the 

organisation relies to 

manage this risk are 

suitably designed, 

consistently applied and 

effective.   

However we have 

identified issues that, if not 

addressed, increase the 

likelihood of the risk 

materialising. 

Taking account of the 

issues identified, the Board 

can take substantial 

assurance that the controls 

upon which the 

organisation relies to 

manage this risk are 

suitably designed, 

consistently applied and 

effective. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical and other professional 

requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement 

of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact 

before they are implemented.  This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound 

commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied 

upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity 

should there be any. 

This report is supplied on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set out herein.  Our work 

has been undertaken solely to prepare this report and state those matters that we have agreed to state to them. This report should not therefore be regarded as 

suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any 

party other than the Board which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the 

fullest extent permitted by law, Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall 

not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to our Client on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed 

written terms), without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London 

EC4A 4AB. 

© 2013 Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP 

 



 Page 1

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE  

 
REPORT OF:    HEAD OF FINANCE  
 
REPORT NO:   HOF279 
 
DATE:       26 June 2014 
 

TITLE: 
 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

None 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION: 

Councillor Paul Carpenter 
Governance and Communication Portfolio Holder 

CONTACT OFFICER: Richard Wyles 
Head of Finance 
r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk 
Tel: (01476) 406210 

INITIAL IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
Equality and Diversity 

Carried out and  
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below: 
 
N/A 

Full impact assessment 
Required: 
 
 
No 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT: 

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 

 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Governance and Audit Committee note that the current internal audit arrangements 
fully conform with the new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
  
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
To update members on the new PSIAS that came into effect on 1 April 2013 and to 
confirm to the Committee that South Kesteven’s internal audit arrangements fully 
conform to the new PSIAS standards.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8



 Page 2

3. DETAILS OF REPORT  
 
Introduction & Background   
  
A professional, independent and objective internal audit service is one of the key 
elements of good governance as recognised throughout the public sector. 
 
Prior to 2013, public sector bodies were covered by different internal audit standards. 
For example, Central Government and the NHS had standards based on those issued 
by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) whereas Local Government used 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local Government – last revised in 2006. 
 
CIPFA and other relevant internal audit standard setters in collaboration with the CIIA 
have been working together to adopt a common set of Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards from 1 April 2013. 
 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards  
 
A copy of the PSIAS is attached as Appendix A. In summary, they consist of the 
following:  
 

• Section 1 – Introduction 

• Section 2 – Applicability 

• Section 3 – Definition of Internal Auditing  

• Section 4 – Code of Ethics 

• Section 5 – Standards covering: purpose, authority and responsibility; 
independence and objectivity; proficiency and due professional care; quality 
assurance and improvement; and managing internal audit activity;   

  
The new standards are intended to promote further improvement in the 
professionalism, quality and effectiveness of internal audit across the public sector. 
They reaffirm the importance of robust, independent and objective internal audit 
arrangements to provide Audit Committees and Senior Management with the key 
assurances they need to support them both in managing the organisation and in 
producing the Annual Governance Statement.   
 
The PSIAS applies to all internal audit service providers, whether in-house, shared or 
outsourced. 
 
The PSIAS also require that internal auditors who work in the public sector have 
regard to the Committee on Standards of Public Life’s Seven Principles of Public Life 
(sometimes referred to as the “Nolan Principles”). These are: selflessness, integrity, 
objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. 
  
Application to South Kesteven 
 
At South Kesteven, the internal audit service is provided by Baker Tilly Risk Advisory 
Services LLP. Whilst most of the requirements of the PSIAS are already in place, 
Baker Tilly has reviewed its arrangements and the following is an extract from their 
Annual Report that is being presented as a separate item on the agenda for this 



 Page 3

meeting. A representative from Baker Tilly will be present to respond to any questions 
raised by members. 
 
[Baker Tilly affirms that our internal audit services to South Kesteven District Council 
are designed to conform with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
which came in to effect from 1 April 2013. Under the standards, internal audit services 
are required to have an external quality assessment at least once every five years. 
During 2011 our Risk Advisory service line commissioned an external independent 
review of our internal audit services to provide assurance whether our approach meets 
the requirements set out in the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) 
published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). The PSIAS are based upon 
the IPPF, and therefore we are confident that the results of this review apply to our 
continuing services in the sector.   
 
The external review concluded that “the design and implementation of systems for the 
delivery of internal audit provides substantial assurance that the standards 
established by the IIA in the IPPF will be delivered in an adequate and effective 
manner”.] 
 
Within the PSIAS, the terms “Board”, “Senior Management” and “Chief Audit 
Executive” must be interpreted in the context of the governance and operational 
arrangements for internal audit within each public sector organisation. For this Council, 
it has been determined that: 
 

� The term “Board” refers to the Governance and Audit Committee which the 
Council has designated as those charged with governance. 

� The term “Senior Management” refers to Strategic Directors and the Chief 
Executive. 

� The role of the “Chief Audit Executive” is performed by the Head of Internal 
Audit, Baker Tilly. 

 
The PSIAS requires that an Internal Audit Charter is in place in each local authority. 
The current Charter, considered by this Committee in October 2013, is being revised 
and updated to ensure that it is consistent with the requirements of the PSIAS. It will 
be further informed by CIPFA’s Local Government Application Note – published in 
April 2013 to assist in the implementation of the PSIAS. The revised Internal Audit 
Charter will be presented to this Committee on an annual basis and alongside the 
Internal Audit Plan when it is considered by members in March – in line with the 
requirements of the PSIAS. 
 
4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
None 
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/ budget, 
people, land/property etc. 
 
6. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA 
         QUALITY) 
 



 Page 4

None 
 
7. ISSUES ARISING FROM EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
None 
 
8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
9. COMMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
None. 
 
10. COMMENT OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 
None. 
 
11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICE MANAGER 
 
None 
 
12.     APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A – Public Sector Internal Audit Standards  
 



Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards

Applying the IIA International Standards to 

the UK Public Sector



Issued by the Relevant Internal Audit Standard Setters:

In collaboration with:



Applying the IIA International Standards to 

the UK Public Sector

Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards



ISBN 978 1 84508 356 4

Permission has been obtained from the copyright holder, The Institute of Internal 

Auditors, 247 Maitland Ave, Altamonte Springs, Florida 32701-4201, USA. The 

concepts enunciated in the original IPPF have been preserved in this version.



 

Contents

Section 1 Introduction 4

Section 2 Applicability 7

Section 3  9

Section 4  10

Section 5 Standards 13

  Attribute Standards 13

   Purpose, authority and responsibility 13

   Independence and objectivity 14

   Quality assurance and improvement programme 17

   20

   Managing the internal audit activity 20

   Nature of work 22

   Engagement planning 24

   Performing the engagement 26

   Communicating results 27

   Monitoring progress 30

   Communicating the acceptance of risks 30

  Glossary 31

       

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     3



 

 

Introduction

A professional, independent and objective internal audit service is one of the key elements of good 

governance, as recognised throughout the UK public sector.

committee members, heads of internal audit, internal auditors, external auditors and other stakeholders 

The Relevant Internal Audit Standard Setters (RIASS)1 have adopted this common set of Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) from 1 April 2013. The PSIAS encompass the mandatory elements of 

the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) as follows:

 

 Code of Ethics, and 

 International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (including interpretations   

 and glossary). 

Additional requirements and interpretations for the UK public sector have been inserted in such a way as 

to preserve the integrity of the text of the mandatory elements of the IPPF.

requirements were considered was that only the minimum number of additions should be made to the 

existing IIA Standards. The criteria against which potential public sector requirements were judged for 

inclusion were:

 where interpretation is required in order to achieve consistent application in the UK public sector

 where the issue is not addressed or not addressed adequately by the current IIA Standards, or

 where the IIA standard would be inappropriate or impractical in the context of public sector    

At the same time, the following concepts were also considered of each requirement or interpretation 

being proposed:

 materiality

 relevance

 necessity, and

 integrity (the additional commentary does not cause inconsistency elsewhere).

1 The Relevant Internal Audit Standard Setters are: HM Treasury in respect of central government; the Scottish Government, the Department 

of Finance and Personnel Northern Ireland and the Welsh Government in respect of central government and the health sector in their 

administrations; the Department of Health in respect of the health sector in England (excluding Foundation Trusts); and the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy in respect of local government across the UK. 

4     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



Wherever reference is made to the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 

Auditing, this is replaced by the PSIAS. Chief audit executives are expected to report conformance on the 

PSIAS in their annual report.

The objectives of the PSIAS are to:

 

 set basic principles for carrying out internal audit in the UK public sector

 establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add value to the organisation,   

 leading to improved organisational processes and operations, and

 establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and to drive  

 improvement planning.

Additional guidance is a matter for the RIASS.

Scope

The PSIAS apply to all internal audit service providers, whether in-house, shared services or outsourced. 

Auditing (see section 3). The provision of assurance services is the primary role for internal audit in the 

UK public sector. This role requires the chief audit executive to provide an annual internal audit opinion 

based on an objective assessment of the framework of governance, risk management and control. 

organisation, with the aim of improving governance, risk management and control and contributing to the 

overall opinion. 

The Code of Ethics promotes an ethical, professional culture (see section 4). It does not supersede or 

replace internal auditors’ own professional bodies’ Codes of Ethics or those of employing organisations. 

Internal auditors must also have regard to the Committee on Standards of Public Life’s Seven Principles of 

Public Life.

In common with the IIA IPPF on which they are based, the PSIAS comprise Attribute and Performance 

Standards. The Attribute Standards address the characteristics of organisations and parties performing 

internal audit activities. The Performance Standards describe the nature of internal audit activities and 

provide quality criteria against which the performance of these services can be evaluated. While the 

Attribute and Performance Standards apply to all aspects of the internal audit service, the Implementation 

 Assurance (A) and

 Consulting (C) activities.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     5



Within the PSIAS, the terms ‘board’ and ‘senior management’ need to be interpreted in the context of 

the governance arrangements within each UK public sector organisation, as these arrangements vary 

in structure and terminology between sectors and from one organisation and the next within in the 

same sector. 

It is also necessary for the chief audit executive to understand the role of the Accounting or Accountable 

decision-making groups as well as how they relate to each other. Key relationships with these individuals 

6     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



 Applicability
 

The Relevant Internal Audit Standard Setters for the various parts of the UK public sector are shown 

below, along with the types of organisations in which the PSIAS should be applied.

SECTOR / 

RELEVANT 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

STANDARD SETTER

 

 

 

Central Government

 

 

 

NHS

 

 

 

Local Government

CIPFA UK

Local authorities.

& Crime Commissioner, 

authorities, National 

Park authorities, joint 

committees and joint 

boards in the UK.

Scotland only

Strathclyde Partnership 

for Transport.

UK*

Government 

departments and their 

executive agencies 

and non-departmental 

public bodies. 

 

Clinical Commissioning 

Groups. 

NHS Trusts.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     7



SECTOR / 

RELEVANT 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

STANDARD SETTER

 

 

 

Central Government

 

 

 

NHS

 

 

 

Local Government

Scottish Scotland

The Scottish 

Government, the Crown 

Fiscal Service, Executive 

Agencies and non-

ministerial departments, 

non-departmental public 

bodies, the Scottish 

Parliament Corporate 

Body and bodies 

sponsored / supported by 

the Scottish Parliament 

Corporate Body.

Scotland

NHS Boards, Special 

NHS Boards, NHS Board 

partnership bodies in the 

public sector (eg joint 

ventures, Community 

Health Partnerships etc), 

NHS Board subsidiaries.

The Welsh Government, 

National Assembly 

for Wales and Welsh 

Government sponsored 

bodies including 

commissioners.

Health Boards and 

Trusts.

Finance and 

Government 

departments, executive 

agencies, non-ministerial 

departments, non-

departmental public 

bodies, NI health and 

social care bodies 

and other relevant 

sponsored bodies.

 

* Unless the body falls under the jurisdiction of the devolved governments.

 

8     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 

and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 

systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 

and governance processes.

 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     9



Code of Ethics

Internal auditors in UK public sector organisations (as set out in the Applicability section) must 

conform to the Code of Ethics as set out below. If individual internal auditors have membership 

of another professional body then he or she must also comply with the relevant requirements of 

that organisation.

The purpose of The Institute’s Code of Ethics is to promote an ethical culture in the profession of internal 

auditing. A code of ethics is necessary and appropriate for the profession of internal auditing, founded as 

it is on the trust placed in its objective assurance about risk management, control and governance. 

essential components:

1  Principles that are relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing;

2  Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of internal auditors. These rules are an aid   

 to interpreting the Principles into practical applications and are intended to guide the ethical conduct of  

 internal auditors.

The Code of Ethics provides guidance to internal auditors serving others. ‘Internal auditors’ refers 

internal auditing.

This Code of Ethics applies to both individuals and entities that provide internal auditing services. For 

Institute members, breaches of the Code of Ethics will be evaluated and administered according to The 

Institute’s Disciplinary Procedures. The fact that a particular conduct is not mentioned in the Rules of 

Conduct does not prevent it from being unacceptable or discreditable and therefore, the member liable to 

disciplinary action.

Public sector interpretation

The ‘Institute’ here refers to the IIA. Disciplinary procedures of other professional bodies and 

employing organisations may apply to breaches of this Code of Ethics.

 

10     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



Principle

The integrity of internal auditors establishes trust and thus provides the basis for reliance on 

their judgement.

Internal auditors:

1.1 Shall perform their work with honesty, diligence and responsibility.

1.2 Shall observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and the profession.

1.3 Shall not knowingly be a party to any illegal activity, or engage in acts that are discreditable to the  

 profession of internal auditing or to the organisation.

1.4 Shall respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation.

Principle

Internal auditors exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating and 

communicating information about the activity or process being examined.

Internal auditors make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and are not unduly 

Internal auditors:

2.1  Shall not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair or be presumed to impair their   

 unbiased assessment. This participation includes those activities or relationships that may be in   

2.2  Shall not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their professional judgement.

2.3  Shall disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may distort the reporting of   

 activities under review.

Principle

Internal auditors respect the value and ownership of information they receive and do not disclose 

information without appropriate authority unless there is a legal or professional obligation to do so.

Internal auditors:

3.1 Shall be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the course of their duties. 

3.2 Shall not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that would be contrary to the law  

 or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     11



Principle 

Internal auditors apply the knowledge, skills and experience needed in the performance of internal 

auditing services. 

Internal auditors:

4.1  Shall engage only in those services for which they have the necessary knowledge, skills    

 and experience.

4.2 Shall perform internal auditing services in accordance with the International Standards for the   

 Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

Internal auditors who work in the public sector must also have regard to the Committee on 

Standards of Public Life’s Seven Principles of Public Life, information on which can be found at  

www.public-standards.gov.uk

 

12     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



Standards
 
Attribute Standards

1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility

internal audit charter, consistent with the  the  and the 

 The chief audit executive must periodically review the internal audit charter and present it to 

senior management and the board for approval.

and responsibility. The internal audit charter establishes the internal audit activity’s position within the 

organisation, including the nature of the chief audit executive’s functional reporting relationship with 

the board; authorises access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance 

charter resides with the board.

The internal audit charter must also:

 

 cover the arrangements for appropriate resourcing;

 

  

 non-audit activities.

1000.A1

charter. If assurances are to be provided to parties outside the organisation, the nature of these 

1000.C1

the and the  in 

the Internal Audit Charter

The mandatory nature of the  the  and the must 

be recognised in the internal audit charter. The chief audit executive should discuss the

 the  and the  with senior management and the board.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     13



The internal audit activity must be independent and internal auditors must be objective in performing 

their work. 

Independence is the freedom from conditions that threaten the ability of the internal audit activity to 

carry out internal audit responsibilities in an unbiased manner. To achieve the degree of independence 

necessary to effectively carry out the responsibilities of the internal audit activity, the chief audit 

executive has direct and unrestricted access to senior management and the board. This can be achieved 

through a dual-reporting relationship. Threats to independence must be managed at the individual 

auditor, engagement, functional and organisational levels.

Objectivity is an unbiased mental attitude that allows internal auditors to perform engagements in such 

a manner that they believe in their work product and that no quality compromises are made. Objectivity 

requires that internal auditors do not subordinate their judgment on audit matters to others. Threats to 

objectivity must be managed at the individual auditor, engagement, functional and organisational levels.

The chief audit executive must report to a level within the organisation that allows the internal audit 

the organisational independence of the internal audit activity.

Organisational independence is effectively achieved when the chief audit executive reports functionally to 

the board. Examples of functional reporting to the board involve the board:

 approving the internal audit charter;

 approving the risk based internal audit plan;

 approving the internal audit budget and resource plan;

 receiving communications from the chief audit executive on the internal audit activity’s    

 performance relative to its plan and other matters;

 approving decisions regarding the appointment and removal of the chief audit executive;

 approving the remuneration of the chief audit executive; and

 making appropriate enquiries of management and the chief audit executive to determine whether   

 there are inappropriate scope or resource limitations.

The chief audit executive must report functionally to the board. The chief audit executive must also 

establish effective communication with, and have free and unfettered access to, the chief executive 

(or equivalent) and the chair of the audit committee.

Public sector interpretation

Governance requirements in the UK public sector would not generally involve the board approving 

CAE is safeguarded by ensuring that his or her remuneration or performance assessment is not 

ensuring that the chief executive (or equivalent) undertakes, countersigns, contributes feedback to or 

reviews the performance appraisal of the CAE and that feedback is also sought from the chair of the 

audit committee.

14     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



1110.A1

The internal audit activity must be free from interference in determining the scope of internal auditing, 

performing work and communicating results. 

1111 Direct Interaction with the Board

The chief audit executive must communicate and interact directly with the board.

perform his or her duties and responsibilities objectively.

If independence or objectivity is impaired in fact or appearance, the details of the impairment must be 

disclosed to appropriate parties. The nature of the disclosure will depend upon the impairment.

Impairment to organisational independence and individual objectivity may include, but is not limited to, 

and resource limitations, such as funding.

The determination of appropriate parties to which the details of an impairment to independence or 

objectivity must be disclosed is dependent upon the expectations of the internal audit activity’s and the 

chief audit executive’s responsibilities to senior management and the board as described in the internal 

audit charter, as well as the nature of the impairment. 

1130.A1

responsible. Objectivity is presumed to be impaired if an internal auditor provides assurance services for 

an activity for which the internal auditor had responsibility within the previous year.

1130.A2

Assurance engagements for functions over which the chief audit executive has responsibility must be 

overseen by a party outside the internal audit activity.

1130.C1

Internal auditors may provide consulting services relating to operations for which they had 

previous responsibilities.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     15



1130.C2

If internal auditors have potential impairments to independence or objectivity relating to proposed 

consulting services, disclosure must be made to the engagement client prior to accepting 

the engagement.

included in the audit plan, prior to accepting the engagement.

Internal auditors must possess the knowledge, skills and other competencies needed to perform their 

individual responsibilities. The internal audit activity collectively must possess or obtain the knowledge, 

skills and other competencies needed to perform its responsibilities.

required of internal auditors to effectively carry out their professional responsibilities. Internal auditors 

Institute of Internal Auditors and other appropriate professional organisations.

suitably experienced.

1210.A1

The chief audit executive must obtain competent advice and assistance if the internal auditors lack the 

knowledge, skills, or other competencies needed to perform all or part of the engagement.

1210.A2

is managed by the organisation, but are not expected to have the expertise of a person whose primary 

responsibility is detecting and investigating fraud.

1210.A3

available technology-based audit techniques to perform their assigned work. However, not all internal 

auditors are expected to have the expertise of an internal auditor whose primary responsibility is 

information technology auditing.

16     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



1210.C1

The chief audit executive must decline the consulting engagement or obtain competent advice and 

assistance if the internal auditors lack the knowledge, skills, or other competencies needed to perform all 

or part of the engagement.

Internal auditors must apply the care and skill expected of a reasonably prudent and competent internal 

auditor. Due professional care does not imply infallibility.

1220.A1

Internal auditors must exercise due professional care by considering the:

 Extent of work needed to achieve the engagement’s objectives;

 

 Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes;

 

 

1220.A2

In exercising due professional care internal auditors must consider the use of technology-based audit and 

other data analysis techniques.

1220.A3

resources. However, assurance procedures alone, even when performed with due professional care, do 

1220.C1

Internal auditors must exercise due professional care during a consulting engagement by considering the:

 Needs and expectations of clients, including the nature, timing and communication of     

 engagement results;

 Relative complexity and extent of work needed to achieve the engagement’s objectives; and

 

Internal auditors must enhance their knowledge, skills and other competencies through continuing 

professional development.

The chief audit executive must develop and maintain a quality assurance and improvement programme 

that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity.

A quality assurance and improvement programme is designed to enable an evaluation of the internal 

audit activity’s conformance with the  and the  and an evaluation 

of whether internal auditors apply the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     17



The quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and external assessments. 

Internal assessments must include:

 Ongoing monitoring of the performance of the internal audit activity; and

 

 knowledge of internal audit practices.

Ongoing monitoring is an integral part of the day-to-day supervision, review and measurement of the 

internal audit activity. Ongoing monitoring is incorporated into the routine policies and practices used to 

manage the internal audit activity and uses processes, tools and information considered necessary to 

evaluate conformance with the  the  and the

Periodic assessments are conducted to evaluate conformance with the , the 

 and the 

International Professional Practices Framework.

assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. The chief audit executive must discuss with 

the board:

 The form of external assessments; 

 

External assessments can be in the form of a full external assessment, or a self-assessment with 

independent external validation.

practice of internal auditing and the external assessment process. Competence can be demonstrated 

through a mixture of experience and theoretical learning. Experience gained in organisations of similar 

size, complexity, sector or industry and technical issues is more valuable than less relevant experience. In 

the case of an assessment team, not all members of the team need to have all the competencies; it is the 

of interest and not being a part of, or under the control of, the organisation to which the internal audit 

activity belongs.

18     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



The chief audit executive must agree the scope of external assessments with an appropriate sponsor, 

assessor or assessment team.

The chief audit executive must communicate the results of the quality assurance and improvement 

programme to senior management and the board.

The form, content and frequency of communicating the results of the quality assurance and improvement 

programme is established through discussions with senior management and the board and considers the 

responsibilities of the internal audit activity and chief audit executive as contained in the internal audit 

charter. To demonstrate conformance with the  the  and the 

the results of external and periodic internal assessments are communicated upon completion 

of such assessments and the results of ongoing monitoring are communicated at least annually. The 

results include the assessor’s or assessment team’s evaluation with respect to the degree of conformance.

The results of the quality and assurance programme and progress against any improvement plans 

must be reported in the annual report.

The chief audit executive may state that the internal audit activity conforms with the

 only if the results of the quality assurance and 

improvement programme support this statement. 

The internal audit activity conforms with the Standards when it achieves the outcomes described in the 

  and

The results of the quality assurance and improvement programme include the results of both internal and 

external assessments. All internal audit activities will have the results of internal assessments. Internal 

When non-conformance with the  the  or the  

impacts the overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity, the chief audit executive must disclose 

the non-conformance and the impact to senior management and the board. 

considered for inclusion in the governance statement.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     19



The chief audit executive must effectively manage the internal audit activity to ensure it adds value to 

the organisation.

The internal audit activity is effectively managed when:

 The results of the internal audit activity’s work achieve the purpose and responsibility included in the   

 internal audit charter;

 The internal audit activity conforms with the  and the  and

 The individuals who are part of the internal audit activity demonstrate conformance with the 

 and the 

The internal audit activity adds value to the organisation (and its stakeholders) when it provides 

management and control processes.

The chief audit executive must establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit 

activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.

The chief audit executive is responsible for developing a risk-based plan. The chief audit executive takes 

into account the organisation’s risk management framework, including using risk appetite levels set 

by management for the different activities or parts of the organisation. If a framework does not exist, 

the chief audit executive uses his/her own judgment of risks after consideration of input from senior 

management and the board. The chief audit executive must review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in 

response to changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, programs, systems, and controls.

The risk-based plan must take into account the requirement to produce an annual internal audit 

opinion and the assurance framework. It must incorporate or be linked to a strategic or high-level 

statement of how the internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the 

internal audit charter and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities.

2010.A1

The internal audit activity’s plan of engagements must be based on a documented risk assessment, 

undertaken at least annually. The input of senior management and the board must be considered in 

this process.

2010.A2

The chief audit executive must identify and consider the expectations of senior management, the board 

and other stakeholders for internal audit opinions and other conclusions.

20     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



2010.C1

The chief audit executive should consider accepting proposed consulting engagements based on the 

engagement’s potential to improve management of risks, add value and improve the organisation’s 

operations. Accepted engagements must be included in the plan.

The chief audit executive must communicate the internal audit activity’s plans and resource requirements, 

chief audit executive must also communicate the impact of resource limitations. 

effectively deployed to achieve the approved plan.

Appropriate refers to the mix of knowledge, skills and other competencies needed to perform the plan. 

deployed when they are used in a way that optimises the achievement of the approved plan.

The risk-based plan must explain how internal audit’s resource requirements have been assessed.

Where the chief audit executive believes that the level of agreed resources will impact adversely on 

the provision of the annual internal audit opinion, the consequences must be brought to the attention 

of the board.

2040 Policies and Procedures

The chief audit executive must establish policies and procedures to guide the internal audit activity.

The form and content of policies and procedures are dependent upon the size and structure of the internal 

audit activity and the complexity of its work.

2050 Coordination

The chief audit executive should share information and coordinate activities with other internal and 

external providers of assurance and consulting services to ensure proper coverage and minimise 

duplication of efforts.

The chief audit executive must include in the risk-based plan the approach to using other sources of 

assurance and any work required to place reliance upon those other sources.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     21



The chief audit executive must report periodically to senior management and the board on the internal 

audit activity’s purpose, authority, responsibility and performance relative to its plan. Reporting must also 

matters needed or requested by senior management and the board.

The frequency and content of reporting are determined in discussion with senior management and the 

board and depend on the importance of the information to be communicated and the urgency of the 

related actions to be taken by senior management or the board.

When an external service provider serves as the internal audit activity, the provider must make the 

organisation aware that the organisation has the responsibility for maintaining an effective internal 

audit activity.

This responsibility is demonstrated through the quality assurance and improvement programme which 

assesses conformance with the  the  and the 

The internal audit activity must evaluate and contribute to the improvement of governance, risk 

management and control processes using a systematic and disciplined approach.

2110 Governance

The internal audit activity must assess and make appropriate recommendations for improving the 

governance process in its accomplishment of the following objectives:

 Promoting appropriate ethics and values within the organisation;

 Ensuring effective organisational performance management and accountability;

 Communicating risk and control information to appropriate areas of the organisation; and

 Coordinating the activities of and communicating information among the board, external and internal   

 auditors and management.

2110.A1

The internal audit activity must evaluate the design, implementation and effectiveness of the 

organisation’s ethics-related objectives, programmes and activities.

2110.A2

The internal audit activity must assess whether the information technology governance of the organisation 

supports the organisation’s strategies and objectives.

22     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



The internal audit activity must evaluate the effectiveness and contribute to the improvement of risk 

management processes. 

Determining whether risk management processes are effective is a judgment resulting from the internal 

auditor’s assessment that:

 Organisational objectives support and align with the organisation’s mission;

 

 Appropriate risk responses are selected that align risks with the organisation’s risk appetite; and

 Relevant risk information is captured and communicated in a timely manner across the organisation,   

 enabling staff, management and the board to carry out their responsibilities.

The internal audit activity may gather the information to support this assessment during multiple 

engagements. The results of these engagements, when viewed together, provide an understanding of the 

organisation’s risk management processes and their effectiveness. 

Risk management processes are monitored through ongoing management activities, separate evaluations, 

or both. 

2120.A1

The internal audit activity must evaluate risk exposures relating to the organisation’s governance, 

operations and information systems regarding the:

 Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives;

 

 

 Safeguarding of assets; and

 Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts.

2120.A2

The internal audit activity must evaluate the potential for the occurrence of fraud and how the 

organisation manages fraud risk.

2120.C1

During consulting engagements, internal auditors must address risk consistent with the engagement’s 

2120.C2

Internal auditors must incorporate knowledge of risks gained from consulting engagements into their 

evaluation of the organisation’s risk management processes.

2120.C3

When assisting management in establishing or improving risk management processes, internal auditors 

must refrain from assuming any management responsibility by actually managing risks.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     23



2130 Control

The internal audit activity must assist the organisation in maintaining effective controls by evaluating their 

2130.A1

The internal audit activity must evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of controls in responding to risks 

within the organisation’s governance, operations and information systems regarding the:

 Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives;

 

 

 Safeguarding of assets; and

 Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts.

2130.C1

Internal auditors must incorporate knowledge of controls gained from consulting engagements into 

evaluation of the organisation’s control processes.

Internal auditors must develop and document a plan for each engagement, including the engagement’s 

objectives, scope, timing and resource allocations.

In planning the engagement, internal auditors must consider:

 The objectives of the activity being reviewed and the means by which the activity controls    

 its performance;

 

 the potential impact of risk is kept to an acceptable level;

 The adequacy and effectiveness of the activity’s governance, risk management and control processes   

 compared to a relevant framework or model; and

 

 and control processes.

2201.A1

When planning an engagement for parties outside the organisation, internal auditors must establish 

a written understanding with them about objectives, scope, respective responsibilities and other 

expectations, including restrictions on distribution of the results of the engagement and access to 

engagement records.

2201.C1

Internal auditors must establish an understanding with consulting engagement clients about objectives, 

understanding must be documented.

24     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



Objectives must be established for each engagement.

2210.A1

Internal auditors must conduct a preliminary assessment of the risks relevant to the activity under 

2210.A2

exposures when developing the engagement objectives.

2210.A3

Adequate criteria are needed to evaluate governance, risk management and controls. Internal auditors 

must ascertain the extent to which management and/or the board has established adequate criteria to 

determine whether objectives and goals have been accomplished. If adequate, internal auditors must use 

such criteria in their evaluation. If inadequate, internal auditors must work with management and/or the 

board to develop appropriate evaluation criteria.

Public sector interpretation

In the public sector, criteria are likely to include value for money.

2210.C1

Consulting engagement objectives must address governance, risk management and control processes to 

the extent agreed upon with the client.

2210.C2

Consulting engagement objectives must be consistent with the organisation’s values, strategies 

and objectives. 

2220.A1

The scope of the engagement must include consideration of relevant systems, records, personnel and 

physical properties, including those under the control of third parties.

2220.A2

understanding as to the objectives, scope, respective responsibilities and other expectations 

should be reached and the results of the consulting engagement communicated in accordance with 

consulting standards.

2220.C1

In performing consulting engagements, internal auditors must ensure that the scope of the engagement 

scope during the engagement, these reservations must be discussed with the client to determine whether 

to continue with the engagement.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     25



2220.C2

During consulting engagements, internal auditors must address controls consistent with the engagement’s 

based on an evaluation of the nature and complexity of each engagement, time constraints and 

available resources.

Internal auditors must develop and document work programmes that achieve the engagement objectives.

2240.A1

Work programmes must include the procedures for identifying, analysing, evaluating and documenting 

information during the engagement. The work programme must be approved prior to its implementation 

and any adjustments approved promptly.

2240.C1

Work programmes for consulting engagements may vary in form and content depending upon the nature 

of the engagement.

engagement’s objectives.

engagement’s objectives.

the same conclusions as the auditor. Reliable information is the best attainable information through the 

use of appropriate engagement techniques. Relevant information supports engagement observations and 

recommendations and is consistent with the objectives for the engagement. Useful information helps the 

organisation meet its goals.

Internal auditors must base conclusions and engagement results on appropriate analyses and evaluations.

Internal auditors must document relevant information to support the conclusions and engagement results.

2330.A1

The chief audit executive must control access to engagement records. The chief audit executive must 

obtain the approval of senior management and/or legal counsel prior to releasing such records to external 

parties, as appropriate.

26     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



2330.A2

The chief audit executive must develop retention requirements for engagement records, regardless of 

the medium in which each record is stored. These retention requirements must be consistent with the 

organisation’s guidelines and any pertinent regulatory or other requirements.

2330.C1

The chief audit executive must develop policies governing the custody and retention of consulting 

engagement records, as well as their release to internal and external parties. These policies must be 

consistent with the organisation’s guidelines and any pertinent regulatory or other requirements.

Engagements must be properly supervised to ensure objectives are achieved, quality is assured and staff 

is developed.

the complexity of the engagement. The chief audit executive has overall responsibility for supervising the 

engagement, whether performed by or for the internal audit activity, but may designate appropriately 

experienced members of the internal audit activity to perform the review. Appropriate evidence of 

supervision is documented and retained.

Internal auditors must communicate the results of engagements.

Communications must include the engagement’s objectives and scope as well as applicable conclusions, 

recommendations and action plans.

2410.A1

Final communication of engagement results must, where appropriate, contain internal auditors’ opinion 

and/or conclusions. When issued, an opinion or conclusion must take account of the expectations of 

relevant and useful information.

Opinions at the engagement level may be ratings, conclusions or other descriptions of the results. Such 

2410.A2

Internal auditors are encouraged to acknowledge satisfactory performance in engagement 

communications.

2410.A3

When releasing engagement results to parties outside the organisation, the communication must include 

limitations on distribution and use of the results.

2410.C1

Communication of the progress and results of consulting engagements will vary in form and content 

depending upon the nature of the engagement and the needs of the client.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     27



Communications must be accurate, objective, clear, concise, constructive, complete and timely.

Accurate communications are free from errors and distortions and are faithful to the underlying 

facts. Objective communications are fair, impartial and unbiased and are the result of a fair-minded 

and balanced assessment of all relevant facts and circumstances. Clear communications are easily 

detail, redundancy and wordiness. Constructive communications are helpful to the engagement client and 

the organisation and lead to improvements where needed. Complete communications lack nothing that 

to support recommendations and conclusions. Timely communications are opportune and expedient, 

communicate corrected information to all parties who received the original communication.

Internal auditors may report that their engagements are “conducted in conformance with the 

 only if the results of the quality 

assurance and improvement programme support the statement.

When nonconformance with the  the  or the

 Principle or rule of conduct of the or Standard(s) with which full conformance was   

 not achieved;

 Reason(s) for nonconformance; and

 Impact of nonconformance on the engagement and the communicated engagement results.

The chief audit executive must communicate results to the appropriate parties.

before issuance and deciding to whom and how it will be disseminated. When the chief audit executive 

delegates these duties, he or she retains overall responsibility.

2440.A1

the results are given due consideration.

28     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



2440.A2

If not otherwise mandated by legal, statutory, or regulatory requirements, prior to releasing results to 

parties outside the organisation the chief audit executive must:

 Assess the potential risk to the organisation;

 Consult with senior management and/ or legal counsel as appropriate; and

 Control dissemination by restricting the use of the results.

2440.C1

to clients.

2440.C2

management and the board.

When an overall opinion is issued, it must take into account the expectations of senior management, 

useful information.

The communication will identify:

 The scope including the time period to which the opinion pertains;

 Scope limitations;

 Consideration of all related projects including the reliance on other assurance providers;

 The risk or control framework or other criteria used as a basis for the overall opinion; and

 The overall opinion, judgment or conclusion reached.

The reasons for an unfavourable overall opinion must be stated.

The chief audit executive must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by 

the organisation to inform its governance statement. 

The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 

organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.

The annual report must incorporate:

 the opinion;

 a summary of the work that supports the opinion; and

 a statement on conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the results of  

 the quality assurance and improvement programme.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     29



The chief audit executive must establish and maintain a system to monitor the disposition of results 

communicated to management.

2500.A1

The chief audit executive must establish a follow-up process to monitor and ensure that management 

actions have been effectively implemented or that senior management has accepted the risk of not 

taking action.

2500.C1

The internal audit activity must monitor the disposition of results of consulting engagements to the extent 

agreed upon with the client.

When the chief audit executive concludes that management has accepted a level of risk that may 

be unacceptable to the organisation, the chief audit executive must discuss the matter with senior 

management. If the chief audit executive determines that the matter has not been resolved, the chief 

audit executive must communicate the matter to the board.

engagement, monitoring progress on actions taken by management as a result of prior engagements, or 

other means. It is not the responsibility of the chief audit executive to resolve the risk.

 

30     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



 
Glossary

Add Value

The internal audit activity adds value to the organisation (and its stakeholders) when it provides 

management and control processes.

Adequate Control

Present if management has planned and organised (designed) in a manner that provides reasonable 

assurance that the organisation’s risks have been managed effectively and that the organisation’s goals 

This is the primary tool used by a board to ensure that it is properly informed on the risks of not 

meeting its objectives or delivering appropriate outcomes and that it has adequate assurances on the 

design and operation of the systems in place to mitigate those risks.

Assurance Services

An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an independent assessment on 

performance, compliance, system security and due diligence engagements.

The governance group charged with independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 

Board

The highest level of governing body charged with the responsibility to direct and/or oversee the activities 

and management of the organisation. Typically, this includes an independent group of directors (eg a 

board of directors, a supervisory board or a board of governors or trustees). If such a group does not 

exist, the ‘board’ may refer to the head of the organisation. ‘Board’ may refer to an audit committee to 

which the governing body has delegated certain functions.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     31



Charter

and responsibility. The internal audit charter establishes the internal audit activity’s position within the 

organisation; authorises access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance 

Chief audit executive describes a person in a senior position responsible for effectively managing the 

internal audit activity in accordance with the internal audit charter and the 

the  and the  The chief audit executive or others reporting to the chief audit 

chief audit executive may vary across organisations.

The  of The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) are Principles relevant to the profession and 

practice of internal auditing and Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour expected of internal auditors. 

The  applies to both parties and entities that provide internal audit services.

The purpose of the  is to promote an ethical culture in the global profession of 

internal auditing.

Adherence to policies, plans, procedures, laws, regulations, contracts, or other requirements.

would prejudice an individual’s ability to perform his or her duties and responsibilities objectively.

Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and scope of which are agreed with the client, are 

intended to add value and improve an organisation’s governance, risk management and control processes 

without the internal auditor assuming management responsibility. Examples include counsel, advice, 

facilitation and training.

Control

Any action taken by management, the board and other parties to manage risk and increase the likelihood 

that established objectives and goals will be achieved. Management plans, organises and directs 

be achieved.

32     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



The attitude and actions of the board and management regarding the importance of control within 

the organisation. The control environment provides the discipline and structure for the achievement 

of the primary objectives of the system of internal control. The control environment includes the 

following elements:

 Integrity and ethical values.

 Management’s philosophy and operating style.

 Organisational structure.

 Assignment of authority and responsibility.

 Human resource policies and practices.

 Competence of personnel.

Control Processes

The policies, procedures (both manual and automated), and activities that are part of a control 

framework, designed and operated to ensure that risks are contained within the level that an organisation 

is willing to accept.

assessment review, fraud examination, or consultancy. An engagement may include multiple tasks or 

The rating, conclusion and/or other description of results of an individual internal audit engagement, 

relating to those aspects within the objectives and scope of the engagement.

A document that lists the procedures to be followed during an engagement, designed to achieve the 

engagement plan.

particular discipline.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     33



Fraud

Any illegal act characterised by deceit, concealment or violation of trust. These acts are not dependent 

upon the threat of violence or physical force. Frauds are perpetrated by parties and organisations to 

obtain money, property or services; to avoid payment or loss of services; or to secure personal or 

business advantage.

Governance

The combination of processes and structures implemented by the board to inform, direct, manage and 

monitor the activities of the organisation toward the achievement of its objectives.

The mechanism by which an organisation publicly reports on its governance arrangements each year.

interest, scope limitations, restrictions on access to records, personnel and properties and resource 

limitations (funding).

Independence

The freedom from conditions that threaten the ability of the internal audit activity to carry out internal 

audit responsibilities in an unbiased manner.

Controls that support business management and governance as well as provide general and technical 

controls over information technology infrastructures such as applications, information, infrastructure 

and people.

Consists of the leadership, organisational structures and processes that ensure that the enterprise’s 

information technology supports the organisation’s strategies and objectives.

Internal Audit Activity

A department, division, team of consultants, or other practitioner(s) that provides independent, objective 

assurance and consulting services designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. 

The internal audit activity helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 

disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk management and 

control processes.

34     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



The conceptual framework that organises the authoritative guidance promulgated by The IIA. 

Authoritative Guidance is comprised of two categories (1) mandatory and (2) strongly recommended.

Public sector interpretation

Only the mandatory elements apply for the purposes of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards take the place of the International Standards 

where applicable.

Must

The  use the word “must” to specify an unconditional requirement.

An unbiased mental attitude that allows internal auditors to perform engagements in such a manner that 

they believe in their work product and that no quality compromises are made. Objectivity requires that 

internal auditors do not subordinate their judgment on audit matters to others.

The rating, conclusion and/or other description of results provided by the chief audit executive 

addressing, at a broad level, governance, risk management and/or control processes of the organisation. 

An overall opinion is the professional judgement of the chief audit executive based on the results of a 

The possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the achievement of objectives. Risk is 

measured in terms of impact and likelihood.

The level of risk that an organisation is willing to accept.

A process to identify, assess, manage and control potential events or situations to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the achievement of the organisation’s objectives.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     35



Should

The  use the word should where conformance is expected unless, when applying professional 

judgment, circumstances justify deviation.

The relative importance of a matter within the context in which it is being considered, including 

quantitative and qualitative factors, such as magnitude, nature, effect, relevance and impact. Professional 

relevant objectives.

Standard

A professional pronouncement promulgated by the Internal Audit Standards Board that delineates 

the requirements for performing a broad range of internal audit activities and for evaluating internal 

audit performance.

Any automated audit tool, such as generalised audit software, test data generators, computerised audit 

programmes, specialised audit utilities and computer-assisted audit techniques (CAATs).

36     Public Sector Internal Audit Standards



Public Sector Internal Audit Standards     37





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council 

Internal Audit Report (1.14/15) 

FINAL 

Follow Up of Previous Internal Audit Recommendations 

12 June 2014 

Agenda Item 9



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

 

 

Contents 
 

Section Page 

1 Executive Summary 1 

2 Action Plan 4 

3 Findings and Recommendations 8 

Appendix A: Definitions for Progress Made 27 

Appendix B: Data to Support our Opinion 28 

Appendix C: Review of Completeness 31 

 

Debrief meeting: n/a Auditors: Chris Williams, Partner 

Robert Barnett, Senior Manager 

Amjad Ali, Client Manager 

Jasbir Chera, Lead Internal Auditor 

Officer Debriefed: n/a 

Draft report issued: 30 May 2014 

Responses received: 12 June 2014 Client sponsor: Richard Wyles, Head of Finance 

Final report issued: 12 June 2014 Distribution: Richard Wyles, Head of Finance 

Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk Officer 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical and other 
professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should 
be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented.  This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for 
management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither 
should our work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
This report is supplied on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set out 
herein.  Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare this report and state those matters that we have agreed to state to them. This report 
should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from Baker Tilly Risk 
Advisory Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Board which obtains access to this report or a copy and 
chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services 
LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of 
whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 
 
This report is released to our Client on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise 
permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report. 

Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 
Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

© 2013 Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 1 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Introduction 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2014/15 we have undertaken a review to follow up 
progress made by South Kesteven District Council to implement previous internal audit 
recommendations. 

Recommendations with dates for implementation not yet due will be followed up later in the year. 

At management’s request, we have only followed up those recommendations classified as High and 
Medium risk. Recommendations categorised as Low risk are to be followed up separately by Council 
staff. It was also agreed that recommendations made in ‘Advisory’ reviews would not be followed up. 

The audits considered as part of the follow up review were: 

• 7.13/14 Car Parks (Enforcement) 

• 9.13/14 Leisure Management Contract 

• 11.13/14 Reactive Repairs and Maintenance 

• 14.13/14 Follow Up (October 2013) 

• 15.13/14 Payroll & Expenses 

• 17.13/14 Bourne Community Access Point 

• 20.13/14 Absence Management 

• 22.13/14 Benefits Fraud Investigation Unit 

• 26.13/14 Economic Development 

• 27.13/14 Consultation and Communications - Stakeholder Contact 

• 29.13/14 Follow Up (January 2014) 

The following reviews had no recommendations meeting the criteria for follow-up: 

• 12.13/14 Stamford Car Park Income 

• 13.13/14 Licensing 

• 24.13/14 Treasury Management 

• 25.13/14 Risk Management 

• 28.13/14 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

The following Advisory reviews were excluded from the follow-up: 

• 18.13/14 Investigation - Council Vehicle Usage 

The 34 recommendations considered in this review comprised four ‘high’ and 30 ‘medium’ 
recommendations. 

Staff members responsible for the implementation of recommendations were interviewed to determine the 
status of agreed actions. Where appropriate, audit testing has been completed to assess the level of 
compliance with this status and the controls in place. 

 

1.2 Conclusion 

Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report and in line with our 
definitions set out in Appendix A, in our opinion South Kesteven District Council has 
demonstrated adequate progress in implementing actions agreed to address internal audit 
recommendations. 

We have reiterated recommendations where these have not yet been implemented. In addition, we 
have made new recommendations where appropriate; these are detailed in the action plan. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15

 

South Kesteven District Council | 2 

1.3 Limitations to the Scope of the Audit 

This review only covered audit recommendations previously made and did not review the whole control 
framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing assurance on the entire risk and 
control framework of those areas. 

The follow up will only cover High and Medium recommendations made in the identified reports. 

We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing 
assurance on the entire risk and control framework of these areas. 

Where testing has been undertaken, our samples have been selected over the period since actions were 
implemented or controls enhanced. 

Our work does not provide any guarantee or absolute assurance against material errors, loss or fraud. 

 

1.4 Recommendation Tracking 

Recommendation tracking enhances an organisation’s risk management and governance processes. It 
provides management with a method to record the implementation status of recommendations made by 
assurance providers, whilst allowing the Audit Committee to monitor actions taken by management. 

Recommendation tracking is undertaken by South Kesteven District Council’s management on a regular 
basis, with an update provided to the Audit Committee at each meeting. As part of our Follow-up review, 
we have verified this information and completed audit testing to confirm the level of implementation stated 
and compliance with controls. 

 

1.5 Status of Recommendations Followed Up 

The pie chart below provides an overview of the status of recommendations that have been followed up 
as part of this review. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15

 

South Kesteven District Council | 3 

The bar chart below provides an overview of the status of recommendations that have been followed up 
as part of this review, grouped according to audit area: 

 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 4 

2 Action Plan 
The priority of the recommendations made is as follows: 

High 

Recommendations are prioritised to reflect our assessment of risk associated with the control weaknesses. Medium 

Low 

Suggestion These are not formal recommendations that impact our overall opinion, but used to highlight a suggestion or idea that management may 
want to consider. 

 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
Y/N 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

 7.13/14 Car Parks (Enforcement) 

3.1.2 Agreed scheduled patrol routes should be 
drawn up by APCOA and reviewed and 
agreed by the Council. 

Spot checks should be undertaken by 
Council staff to ensure APCOA are 
complying with the agreement. 

Medium Y Patrol routes are reviewed with APCOA at 
regular meetings. However more needs to 
be done to ensure routes are effective for 
level of enforcement activity required.   

 

APCOA enforcement officers log in with 
their handheld devise when on our car 
parks as they patrol both on and off street. 
Therefore logs are created against which 
spot checks can be undertaken. 

Ongoing Team Leader - 
Operations 

 14.13/14 Follow Up (October 2013) 

3.4.1 20.12/13 Land Charges 

The Local Land Charges Register should 
be updated in a timely manner, once the 
notification has been received. 

Medium Y The backlog of outstanding registrations 
has been significantly reduced and until 
recent months was being kept up to date in 
a timely manner for all 
registrations.  However, an increase in the 
number of Local Land Charge Searches to 
be processed and EIR litigation claim work 
has impacted on the ability to maintain 
this.  Completion of training in this area to 
increase capacity within the team is a 
service work objective for 2014/15. 

December 2014 Planning Policy & 
Partnerships 

Service Manager 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 5 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
Y/N 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

3.4.4 25.12/13 Follow Up 

2.12/13 Contract Management - Ground 
& Tree Maintenance 

A record of the checks carried out by the 
Grounds Maintenance staff for agreeing 
the value of works carried out should be 
maintained as part of the payment 
authorisation process. 

Medium Y Following the receipt of invoice from 
Glendale, works are checked and invoice 
not signed for payment until work has been 
approved. 

Implemented  Team Leader - 
Operations 

 15.13/14 Payroll & Expenses 

3.5.1 The Council should ensure that expense 
receipts are retained within departments in 
a consistent manner; providing adequate 
records are maintained for audit purposes 
and in line with the Financial Regulations. 

Medium Y Service Managers reminded that they 
should retain receipts within departments.  
The Exchequer Services Officer will 
continue to perform spot checks on 
expense claims each month to determine 
whether receipts are retained. 

Implemented Management 
Accountant Team 

Leader 

 27.13/14 Consultation and Communications - Stakeholder Contact 

3.10.1 The draft Social Media Policy should be 
finalised, submitted to Cabinet / Council for 
approval, and once approved, it should be 
issued to every member of staff. 

Medium Y The draft Social Media Policy has been 
finalised and is currently with the Strategic 
Director - Corporate Focus, awaiting 
approval at the next Management Team 
meeting on the 18 June 2014. 

June 2014 Reputation, 
Communication 
& Consultation 

Service Manager 

 29.13/14 Follow Up (January 2014) 

3.11.1 31.12/13 Flexible Working 
Arrangements 

The People & Organisational Development 
Team should develop a record of the 
sample checks undertaken that includes 
the: 

· Employee selected and department. 

· Date of check. 

· Officer carrying out the check. 

· Result of the check. 

Medium Y Checks have taken place.  A spreadsheet 
has been created to capture the 
information from the random checks. 

May 2014 People & 
Organisational 
Development 

Service Manager 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 6 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
Y/N 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

3.11.2 32.12/13 Data Security - Policy and 
Training 

Planning Department 

Management should appraise their training 
and awareness requirements for 
Information / Data Security and ensure that 
all members of staff receive a relevant 
level of training for their use of IT and role 
in the organisation in relation to information 
handling. 

There should be a comprehensive 
approach for all members of staff 
commencing with a mandatory induction 
session and a periodic refresher training 
session which covers information and data 
security. 

Corporate Level 

Management should also create a single 
repository containing training attendance 
records for all staff at the Council. 

Medium Y Unfortunately due to the absence of a 
Development Management Service 
Manager this recommendation has not 
been implemented.  It has been reassigned 
to another manager and the appraisal 
process will be undertaken in July with the 
inductions being implemented in 
September. 

September 2014 Planning Policy & 
Partnerships 

Service Manager 

3.11.3 32.12/13 Data Security - Policy and 
Training 

Management should implement stronger 
logical security controls within the APAS 
system. These should reflect the settings 
of other systems in use at the Council. 

Medium Y Unfortunately due to the absence of a 
Development Management Service 
Manager this recommendation has not 
been implemented.  It has been reassigned 
to another manager. 

July 2014 Planning Policy & 
Partnerships 

Service Manager 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 7 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
Y/N 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

3.11.4 1.13/14 Pool Cars 

Now that the new pool car scheme has 
been implemented, and all the elements 
are in place, an overarching Pool Car 
policy should be developed to include: 

· Booking and allocation of vehicles. 

· Resulting actions for failure to use 
booked vehicles. 

· Recharging of usage. 

· Responsibilities for cleanliness. 

· Vehicles being used in a safe and 
responsible manner. 

· Vehicle log sheet completion. 

· Condition checks and defect reporting. 

· Driving license checks. 

The policy should be reviewed bi-annually 
and updated as required. 

Low Y Agree with the low categorisation now all 
the improved elements are in place and 
working well. 

An overall pool car management procedure 
will now be completed. 

July 2014 Property 
Development 
Manager and 

Waste & 
Recycling 

Service Manager 

3.11.6 2.13/14 Follow Up 

17.12/13 Cash and Banking 

Following the move to the Bourne 
Community Access Point the controls 
below should be applied: 

· A record of the under or over income 
declared to Lincolnshire County 
Council should be maintained by South 
Kesteven District Council. 

· A decision in relation to adopting South 
Kesteven District Council’s procedures 
and systems should be made 
promptly. 

Medium Y A new representative from LCC is now in 
place and discussions have already begun 
on the future of payments. 

December 2014 Customer 
Services 
Manager 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 8 

3 Findings and Recommendations 
Each recommendation followed up has been categorised in line with the following: 

Status Detail 

1 The entire recommendation has been fully implemented. 

2 The recommendation has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

3 The recommendation has not been implemented. 

4 The recommendation has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 

5 The agreed date for implementing the recommendation has not yet been reached. 

 

3.1 7.13/14 CAR PARKS (ENFORCEMENT) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.1.1 The number of instances where an audit ticket is 
not received should be monitored. 

Discrepancies of over £5.00 in value should be 
reviewedand investigated. 

The car parks team should meet with Finance to 
understand the content of the cash collection 
records and monitoring and further review of the 
information should then be undertaken by the Car 
Parks team. 

Medium 31 July 2013 Team Leader 
Operations 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Team Leader - Operations 
and Administration Assistant found that machines 
previously not issuing audit tickets have now 
been repaired. Where an audit ticket is not 
produced, the Car Parks Team is notified by the 
collection company, Kings. 

Discrepancies identified are investigated by the 
Administration Assistant who refers back to the 
diary record maintained of issues reported. 

The Car Parks Team have met with Finance to 
determine the nature of the cash collection 
records, with monthly monitoring taking place to 
observe whether takings are under or over the 
amount expected. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 9 

3.1 7.13/14 CAR PARKS (ENFORCEMENT) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.1.2 Agreed scheduled patrol routes should be drawn 
up by APCOA and reviewed and agreed by the 
Council. 

Spot checks should be undertaken by Council 
staff to ensure APCOA are complying with the 
agreement. 

Medium On-going 

 
 

31 August 
2013. 

Team Leader 
Operations 

2 Being Implemented. 

Discussion with the Team Leader - Operations 
and Administration Assistant found that APCOA 
presented the planned patrol routes at a meeting; 
however, no formal documentation has been 
provided confirming the routes. 

Issues surrounding service delivery have been 
reported at the regular review meetings held with 
APCOA, which have arisen from customer 
complaints and monitoring of patrol records, with 
spot checks taking place as and when resources 
are available. This monitoring has highlighted that 
the Council is not receiving the 69 hours of 
service contracted for. The Car Parks Team are 
in contact with APCOA to resolve the issues 
identified. 

Recommendation restated. 

3.1.3 APCOA should be requested to provide a clear 
and precise breakdown of patrols within car parks 
in both Stamford and Grantham showing an 
accumulative total of hours spent within each 
individual car park to support invoices submitted 
to the Council. 

Prior to payment of invoices a member of the car 
park team should review this breakdown to 
ensure that invoices are accurate and reflect 
actual work undertaken. 

Medium On-going 

 

 

 

 
31 August 

2013 

Team Leader 
Operations 

1 Implemented. 

The Car Parks Team receive a monthly invoice 
from the Contract Manager at APCOA, which 
includes a breakdown of the hours spent each 
day on car parks within the district. 

The Administration Assistant checks the data 
included within the breakdown against the reports 
generated by Chipside, which includes an 
analysis of the hours spent in each car park and 
number of notices issued. 

Invoices received have provided further evidence 
that the contracted provision of 69 patrol hours 
per week are not being delivered. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 10 

3.1 7.13/14 CAR PARKS (ENFORCEMENT) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.1.4 The Council should request that clear 
photographs are taken by APCOA staff of vehicle 
windscreens to confirm a valid ticket has not 
been displayed. 

Medium Implemented Team Leader 
Operations / 

Property 
Development 

Admin 
Assistant 

1 Implemented. 

The Car Parks Team have contacted APCOA on 
numerous occasions, requesting that APCOA 
staff take clear photographs when issuing a 
notice. 

Where photographs are unclear, the Team can 
request that an image is enhanced. 

 

3.2 9.13/14 LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.2.1 The Council should undertake a review to 
determine the frequency of the site inspections 
and the inspections should be carried out in 
accordance to this frequency. 

Monitoring arrangements should be put into place 
to ensure that the site inspections are being 
carried out as required. 

To ensure that there is continuity in the inspection 
process; arrangements should be put into place 
for the inspections to be carried out in the 
absence of the designated officer. 

Medium 31 October 
2013 

Team Leader 
- Leisure & 
Amenities 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Leisure & Amenities Team 
Leader found that the Council has developed a 
schedule for site inspections, detailing the 
minimum frequency of such inspections. 

A checklist has also been developed to record 
the date of inspection at each site and the officer 
carrying out the inspection. Review of the 
schedule and checklist found that site inspections 
were being carried out in line with the frequency 
determined. 

The Leisure & Amenities Assistant has recently 
joined the Team and predominantly carries out 
the inspections. In the Leisure & Amenities 
Assistant’s absence, the Leisure Officer will 
provide cover and carry out inspections. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 11 

3.2 9.13/14 LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.2.2 To ensure that all site inspections as well as the 
potential and outstanding points are recorded 
accurately on the Month End Rectifications Points 
summary sheet and to also minimise the risk or 
errors being made in recording the data, a review 
should be undertaken by the Council on how best 
to capture all the data from the inspection reports 
to the Month End Rectifications Points summary 
sheet. 

Medium 31 October 
2013 

Team Leader 
- Leisure & 
Amenities 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Leisure & Amenities Team 
Leader identified that inspections and 
rectifications are input onto the Points Summary 
Report spread sheet which automatically 
calculates the total number of rectification points 
and charges in the summary sheet. 

Review of the spread sheet found that adequate 
formulas had been implemented to reduce the 
risk of errors being made when recording data. 

3.2.3 Monitoring checks should be undertaken during 
the site inspection to confirm DBS checks have 
been carried out by the Contractor on all staff 
employed at the leisure centres. 

Medium 31 January 
2014 

Team Leader 
- Leisure & 
Amenities 

1 Implemented. 

The Team receive e-mail notifications on a 
monthly basis of new employees that have joined 
the leisure centres. This information is input into a 
DBS spread sheet maintained by the Team. 

Whilst carrying out site inspections, the Leisure & 
Amenities Assistant will carry out a spot check on 
DBS checks undertaken and update the spread 
sheet record with the date of inspection and 
whether the DBS records have been checked. 
Review of the spread sheet found that spot 
checks had been carried out from November 
2013 to the time of the recommendation follow-
up. 

The Leisure & Amenities Team Leader advised 
that there had been no instances where the site 
failed to provide evidence of DBS checks. 

The Leisure & Amenities Team Leader also 
informed us that a Health & Safety inspection of 
the leisure centres was scheduled for January 
2014, however, due to the vacant Health & Safety 
Advisor role, the inspection has been put on hold. 
This inspection will provide a secondary 
monitoring check. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 12 

3.3 11.13/14 REACTIVE REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.3.1 Post inspection of repairs should be carried out 
as required. 

Medium 31 December 
2013 

Team Leader 
/ Assistant 

Service 
Manager 

1 Implemented. 

The Council employs two Supervisors who are 
responsible for carrying out post inspections of 
repairs. A diary system is utilised on Microsoft 
Outlook, providing a record of the inspections 
carried out. 

From the 1st January to the 7th May 2014, a total 
of 140 post inspections had been carried out. 

 

3.4 14.13/14 FOLLOW UP (OCTOBER 2013) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.4.1 20.12/13 Land Charges 

The Local Land Charges Register should be 
updated in a timely manner, once the notification 
has been received. 

Medium Original: 
March 2013 

Revised to: 
December 

2013 

Service 
Manager 
Planning 
Policy & 

Partnerships 

2 Being Implemented. 

The Land Charges Officer informed us that she is 
the only officer within the Land Charges Team 
who is trained in all areas to input notifications 
received onto the Local Land Charges Register. 
A second member of staff has received limited 
training, as such; it has not been possible to 
update the Register in a timely manner in all 
instances. 

Testing of a sample of five notifications received 
found that: 

· Two notifications had been input within 
one day of receipt. 

· There was a delay in updating the 
Register of 42 and 83 days in two 
instances. 

· There was a query with one notification 
received, as such; it had not yet been 
entered onto the Register. 

Recommendation restated. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 13 

3.4 14.13/14 FOLLOW UP (OCTOBER 2013) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.4.2 20.12/13 Land Charges 

Approval should be obtained and retained on file 
to support the decision not to chase for the 
outstanding fee, if this is of a low value. 

An analysis of the income lost should be 
undertaken and be reported to management. 

Medium Original: 
March 2013 

Revised to: 
October 2013 

Service 
Manager 
Planning 
Policy & 

Partnerships 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Land Charges Officer and 
Local Land Charges Assistant found that a write-
off form is completed and authorised by the 
Service Manager - Planning Policy & 
Partnerships where fees of a low value are 
deemed to be irrecoverable. 

Testing of a sample of five low value amounts 
found that formal authorisation was retained 
confirming the outstanding amount was to be 
written-off in all instances. 

The Service Manager - Planning Policy & 
Partnerships prepares and submits a year-end 
report to the Head of Development and Growth, 
summarising the under and overpayments 
position. Review of the 2013/14 report found that 
from October 2013, when the process was 
introduced, there had been 13 overpayments and 
16 underpayments, resulting in a new amount of -
£4.00 being written-off. 

3.4.3 25.12/13 Follow Up 

2.12/13 Contract Management - Ground & Tree 
Maintenance 

When a service is retendered, the Council should 
ensure that resulting contract(s) is / are signed by 
all parties involved. 

High Original: 
March 2013 

Revised to: 
March 2014 

Team Leader 
- Operations 

1 Implemented. 

The Team Leader - Operations informed us that 
contracts are appropriately signed following a 
retender. 

Review of the Grounds Maintenance contract 
dated from the 1st March 2014 found that the 
contract had been sealed and signed by the 
Strategic Director - Corporate Focus and the 
Director of the contracting company, Glendale 
Grounds Management Ltd. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 14 

3.4 14.13/14 FOLLOW UP (OCTOBER 2013) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.4.4 25.12/13 Follow Up 

2.12/13 Contract Management - Ground & Tree 
Maintenance 

When the new ground and tree maintenance 
contract is let it should be ensured that the 
contractor has responsibility for invoice 
preparation, and Grounds Maintenance staff are 
responsible for checking and agreeing the value 
as part of the payment authorisation process. 

Medium Original: 
June 2012 

Revised to: 
February 

2013 

Further 
Revised to: 
March 2014 

Team Leader 
- Operations 

2 Being Implemented. 

The Grounds Maintenance contract confirms that 
the Council will pay the contractor for services 
rendered following receipt of a valid invoice.  

Discussion with the Team Leader - Operations 
identified that there has been issues surrounding 
service delivery in terms of grass cutting which 
have been identified through staff checking the 
works carried out and customer complaints 
ahead of payment, however, no formal record of 
checks was available. The Team are liaising with 
the contractor to rectify these issues, however if 
they persist, the Team Leader - Operations has 
advised that the Council will seek to impose 
penalties in line with the contract. 

Revised recommendation made. 

3.4.5 25.12/13 Follow Up 

02.12/13 Contract Management - Ground & 
Tree Maintenance 

A program of scheduled inspections of work 
undertaken by the Contractor should be in place 
and followed, to ensure that there is an audit trail 
to evidence the monitoring that the work is being 
carried to an acceptable standard throughout the 
District. 

High Original: 
March 2013 

Revised to: 
April 2013 

Further 
Revised to: 
March 2014 

Team Leader 
- Operations 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Team Leader - Operations 
identified that the Grounds Maintenance Team 
carry out inspections in line with work undertaken 
by the contractor and following complaints 
received from members of the public. 

Review of documentation found that a record of 
e-mail correspondence and photographs of the 
work undertaken is maintained. 

The contractor, Glendale Services, has been 
contacted on numerous occasions regarding the 
standard of work delivered and compliance with 
the contract. 

The Team Leader - Operations informed us that 
should issues with the standard of service 
delivery persist; the Council will seek to impose 
financial penalties from the 1st June 2014. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 15 

3.5 15.13/14 PAYROLL & EXPENSES FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.5.1 The Council should ensure that expense receipts 
are retained within departments in a consistent 
manner; providing adequate records are 
maintained for audit purposes and in line with the 
Financial Regulations. 

Receipts should be provided to the authorising 
manager to confirm they are reviewed prior to 
approving the claim. Expense claims should not 
be approved until corresponding receipts have 
been verified. 

Medium November 
2013 

Finance 
Support 
Manager 

2 Being Implemented. 

Discussion with the Exchequer Services Officer 
identified that employees are required to provide 
their Team Leaders or Managers with the 
relevant receipts for each expenses claim. 

The Exchequer Services Officer performs a spot 
check on expense claims each month to 
determine whether receipts are retained. 

Testing of a sample of 10 expense claims 
submitted from November 2013 to March 2014 
found: 

· Receipts were retained in seven 
instances, including one instance where 
there was a £1 overpayment, with the 
Exchequer Services Officer notified. 

· Receipts were not available in three 
instances for reasons including a 
machine fault, failure to scan the receipt 
in and disposal of receipts following 
payment of the expense claim. 

Testing of a sample of five spot checks 
undertaken by the Exchequer Services Officer 
found that a receipt was retained in all instances.  

Revised recommendation made. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 16 

3.6 17.13/14 BOURNE COMMUNITY ACCESS POINT FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.6.1 Each night, the money taken at the till and by 
each RFID machine should be counted and 
recorded, to provide an accurate record of the 
money held in the safe. 

For a short period, (one or two weeks) a separate 
record of income taken for LCC should be 
maintained; this should be reconciled to the daily 
takings counted. 

When the weekly cash up is undertaken these 
records can then be compared with daily 
transaction records to identify where differences 
occur, and possible provide some explanation of 
the reason behind any differences. 

Once this information is known, then the Council 
could approach Lincolnshire County Council with 
suggestion to improve and possible combine 
cash procedures. 

Medium 31 December 
2013 

Interim 
Service 

Manager 
Customer 
Services 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Customer Services Manager 
identified that a daily cash-up process is in 
operation, with cash-up sheets completed to 
provide a record of the daily takings. 

As the Council has not been able to merge its 
cash and banking procedures with Lincolnshire 
County Council (LCC) as yet, a separate record 
is still maintained for the library income. 

When completing the cash-up process, 
discrepancies are regularly identified for small 
amounts. The Customer Services Manager 
informed us that LCC have been contacted in 
relation to the differences, however advised that 
this has always been the case. On investigation, 
the Customer Services Team informed us that 
the differences may be due to the fact that the 
RFID machines do not generate change. 

3.6.2 Procedure notes should be updated to remove 
the combination code for the safe (and key safe), 
and the combination codes should be changed 
from that which is quoted in the procedure notes. 

Also, a procedure should be introduced to ensure 
that the combination codes are changed 
whenever a member of staff leaves their 
employment at Bourne CAP. 

High 31 October 
2013 

Interim 
Service 

Manager 
Customer 
Services 

1 Implemented. 

The procedure notes have been updated, with 
reference to the combination code for the safe 
removed and changed. 

The Customer Services Manager informed us 
that there have been no leavers within the team 
during the year, however, there will be one leaver 
in June 2014, at which point the code will be 
changed by the Customer Services Supervisor. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 17 

3.7 20.13/14 ABSENCE MANAGEMENT FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.7.1 The reason code 'other' should not be generically 
used. If this code is initially used an accurate 
absence reason should be obtained and the 
system updated. In all instances an accurate 
reason for absence should be input. 

Medium 31.12.2013 All Managers 1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the People & Organisational 
Development Officer identified that managers are 
required to provide the People & Organisational 
Development Team with the relevant information 
in relation to staff absence. 

Review of a System generated report from the 
1st January 2014 to the time of the follow-up 
review found that: 

· 14 (5.7%) of 244 absences had been 
coded to ‘other. 

· An additional description was provided in 
12 instances, providing an explanation of 
the nature of the absence and reason for 
not selecting a specific absence code. 

· The remaining two absences coded to 
‘other’ were in relation to an employee 
still absent and an employee from the 
Waste and Recycling Department. The 
People & Organisational Development 
Officer advised that a new Team was in 
place in Waste and Recycling, with 
additional guidance being provided on 
Council procedures. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 18 

3.8 22.13/14 BENEFITS FRAUD INVESTIGATION UNIT FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.8.1 Management should ensure that access to the 
benefit fraud module is restricted to relevant staff. 

Medium 8 November 
2013 

Revenues and 
Benefits 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Access to the benefit fraud module has been 
restricted to the: 

· Revenues & Benefits Service Manager. 

· Benefit Manager. 

· Revenues Manager (to provide cover in 
the absence of the Benefit Manager). 

· Fraud Officers. 

· Benefits Co-ordinators. 

· Technical and Systems Support Officers 
who provide IT support. 

 

3.9 26.13/14 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.9.1 Each project should have a properly structure file, 
which should include a checklist identifying the 
project stages as required by the Corporate 
process for projects. 

This checklist can then be utilised to record when 
documents are prepared and approved, and also 
provide cross reference to documents not held on 
file and reason for stages not being completed if 
they are not applicable. 

Medium 31 January 
2014 

Economic 
Development 
& Investment 

Service 
Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Economic Development & 
Investment Service Manager found that a 
checklist has been devised identifying the project 
stages involved in each project. 

Review of a completed checklist found: 

· A description of each stage is recorded. 

· Date the action has been completed. 

· Any additional comments applicable to a 
particular stage, including details of 
information not retained on file. 

Checklists are stored at the front of the collection 
of documents for each project in a folder located 
in the Economic Development office. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 19 

3.9 26.13/14 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.9.2 For those applications received where the 
property owners also put in quotes to undertake 
the work, additional checks should be undertaken 
to ensure that all quotes obtained are bona fide, 
and even obtain independent quotes if it is 
considered necessary. 

The property owners should also be required to 
agree to additional terms of acceptance such as 
including a clause stating that the Council will not 
pay more than the value agreed based on the 
lowest quote obtained. 

The final payment should only be released to the 
property owners, once a full breakdown of costs 
has been received. 

High 31 January 
2014 

Economic 
Development 
& Investment 

Service 
Manager 

1 Implemented. 

The Economic Development & Investment 
Service Manager informed us that property 
owners are required to submit three separate 
quotations, with the quotes reviewed by the 
Heritage Architect to check whether the price 
reflects the correct materials to be used for the 
project and labour costs. 

The offer letter has been amended, with clause 5 
confirming that the Council will only make 
payment in line with the lowest quote obtained. 

Clause 11 confirms that grants will only be paid 
following receipt of invoices from the contractors 
used showing a detailed breakdown of the costs 
incurred in accordance with the agree schedule 
of works. 

The Shop Front Improvement Scheme Guidance 
Notes have also been amended in line with the 
above. 

 

3.10 27.13/14 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS - STAKEHOLDER CONTACT FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.10.1 The draft Social Media Policy should be finalised, 
submitted to Cabinet / Council for approval, and 
once approved, it should be issued to every 
member of staff. 

Medium March 2014 Reputation, 
Communication& 
Consultation 

Service 
Manager 

2 Being Implemented. 

The Reputation, Communication & Consultation 
Service Manager informed us that the draft Social 
Media Policy has been finalised and is currently 
with the Strategic Director - Corporate Focus, 
awaiting approval at the next Management Team 
meeting on the 18th June 2014. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 20 

3.11 29.13/14 FOLLOW UP (JANUARY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.11.1 31.12/13 Flexible Working Arrangements 

Sample checks of employee flexi-time records 
should be conducted by an independent officer 
who fully understands the Flexible Working Policy 
(such as a member of the central HR team) to 
ensure that there is a consistent approach to 
applying the policy across all Council 
departments and to ensure that employees are 
completing their records in line with the policy. 

Staff should also be informed that tampering with 
the flexitime spreadsheets is a disciplinary 
offence. 

Medium Original: 
Spot checks 

will take place 
throughout the 

year. 

Revised to: 
March 2014 

People & OD 
Service 

Manager 

2 Being Implemented. 

The People & Organisational Development 
Officer informed us that a quarterly sample check 
of one officer from each department is 
undertaken by both of the People & 
Organisational Development Officers. Managers 
are required to provide the timesheet of one 
randomly selected employee. 

The last sample check request was issued on the 
19th March 2014, with the next check due in June 
2014. The People & Organisational Development 
Officer informed us that a record of the sample 
checks undertaken is not maintained.  

An all staff e-mail was issued on the 19th March 
2014, ahead of the new financial year, informing 
employees that tampering with flexible 
timesheets is a disciplinary offence. 

Revised recommendation made. 

3.11.2 32.12/13 Data Security - Policy and Training 

Planning Department 

Management should appraise their training and 
awareness requirements for Information / Data 
Security and ensure that all members of staff 
receive a relevant level of training for their use of 
IT and role in the organisation in relation to 
information handling. 

There should be a comprehensive approach for 
all members of staff commencing with a 
mandatory induction session and a periodic 
refresher training session which covers 
information and data security. 

Corporate Level 

Management should also create a single 
repository containing training attendance records 
for all staff at the Council. 

Medium Original: 
31 October 

2013 

Revised to: 
May 2014 

Development 
Management 

Service 
Manager 

3 Not Implemented. 

Following the departure of the Development 
Management Service Manager, no evidence is 
available that the recommendation has been 
implemented. 

The Principal Planning Officer informed us that 
he was not aware that an appraisal exercise had 
been carried out to identify training requirements 
or that any additional training had been provided.   

Recommendation restated. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 21 

3.11 29.13/14 FOLLOW UP (JANUARY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.11.3 32.12/13 Data Security - Policy and Training 

Management should implement stronger logical 
security controls within the APAS system. These 
should reflect the settings of other systems in use 
at the Council. 

Medium Original: 
31 December 

2013 

Revised to: 
May 2014 

Development 
Management 

Service 
Manager 

3 Not Implemented. 

Following the departure of the Development 
Management Service Manager, no evidence is 
available that the recommendation has been 
implemented. 

The Principal Planning Officer verbally confirmed 
that logical security controls were in place within 
the APAS System. 

Recommendation restated. 

3.11.4 1.13/14 Pool Cars 

Once the pool car scheme has been revised, 
based on the options documented within the Pool 
Car Usage and Management Business Case, an 
overarching Pool Car policy should be developed 
to include: 

· Booking and allocation of vehicles. 

· Resulting actions for failure to use 
booked vehicles. 

· Recharging of usage. 

· Responsibilities for cleanliness. 

· Vehicles being used in a safe and 
responsible manner. 

· Vehicle log sheet completion. 

· Condition checks and defect reporting. 

· Driving license checks. 

All pool car users should sign to accept the terms 
and conditions as stated in the policy. 

The policy should be reviewed bi-annually and 
updated as required. 

Medium Original: 
30 September 

2013 

Revised to: 
April 2014 

Environmental 
Health 
Service 

Manager 

2 Being Implemented. 

All the components for operating the pool 
carscheme are now in place, including guidance 
for booking and checking of vehicles and these 
have been circulated to all staff. 

The electronic booking system requires staff to 
agree to terms of usage when booking a vehicle. 

However, an overarching Pool Car Policy has not 
yet been prepared. 

Revised recommendation made. 

3.11.5 1.13/14 Pool Cars 

Management should ensure that staff are made 
aware of the need to only book Pool cars when 
required for visits/ appointments. 

Medium Original: 
31 March 

2014 

Revised to: 

Property 
Development 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

The Team Leader - Operations and 
Administration Assistant informed us that a Pool 
Car Guide had been produced setting out the 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 22 

3.11 29.13/14 FOLLOW UP (JANUARY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

Management should consider a minimum charge 
for all bookings to be incurred when a pool car is 
booked, which is not refundable when a booking 
is cancelled. 

April 2014 reasons behind a new pool car system and the 
basic principles to be adopted by all users. The 
principles include: 

· All bookings are to be made directly by 
the officers requiring the vehicle. 

· No re-occurring or block bookings can be 
made and will be cancelled where 
identified. 

· Vehicles will be reallocated after 30 
minutes where users do to pick-up the 
keys. 

Users are required to confirm their agreement to 
abide by the principles by signing a pool car 
approval form. 

The Team Leader - Operations informed us that 
the new system provides real time information 
and provides a more efficient pool car service, as 
such, the introduction of a minimum charge is not 
deemed necessary. 

3.11.6 2.13/14 Follow Up 

17.12/13 Cash and Banking 

Following the move to the Bourne Community 
Access Point the controls below should be 
applied: 

· The cashing up process should be 
undertaken at the end of each day. 

· The reconciliation of physical cash 
received to till / RFID records to the cash 
receipting system should be undertaken 
for one till / RFID at a time. 

· The Library should declare any income 
under or over that expected to 
Lincolnshire County Council and bank the 
income currently held in the under and 
over tin. Where an under or over receipt 

Medium Original: 
April 2013 

Revised to: 
ASAP 

Further 
Revised to: 

Begin review 
end May 2014 

Customer 
Services 
Manager 

2 Being Implemented. 

Discussion with the Customer Services Manager 
identified that the cashing-up process is 
undertaken on a daily basis. 

Reconciliation of the physical cash received to 
the till and RFID records takes place for one 
till/RFID machine at a time. 

All library income received is banked, with a 
record of whether the amount is under or over 
that expected maintained. Discrepancies are 
recorded on LCC’s System; however, a copy of 
the discrepancies is not maintained. LCC have 
previously been contacted to provide a copy of 
this, however, advised that it was not possible at 
the time as the System was relatively new. 

The Customer Services Manager informed us 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 23 

3.11 29.13/14 FOLLOW UP (JANUARY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

is identified the value should be recorded 
and the cause should be investigated if 
this is over a set limit, e.g. £5. 

· If the current Lincolnshire County Council 
systems are continued to be used 
following the move to the Bourne 
Community Access Point, each till user 
should be provided with an individual 
account to log on to the cash receipting 
system and the till; they should use only 
one till in their shift and at the end of 
each shift the till should be cashed up, 
making the operator accountable for 
transactions processed. Alternatively the 
SKDC systems could be used wherever 
possible; however this will need to be 
agreed with Lincolnshire County Council, 
along with any recharges and processes 
for transfer of Library income. 

that each till user has their own account to log on 
to the Cash Receipting System. Where possible, 
the Team restrict the number of users logging-on 
to one employee a day so that the cash-up 
process is only carried out once daily. The details 
of the officer logged in are recorded on the 
paperwork held by the Grantham Banking Hall 
and were not available at the time of the review. 

Discussions to adopt South Kesteven District 
Council’s procedures and systems are to 
recommence with Lincolnshire County Council 
(LCC) at the end of May 2014 following a period 
of consultation with the library staff. 

Revised recommendation made. 

3.11.7 5.13/14 Fleet Management 

The Council should utilise the Roadbase system 
to record details of all Fleet Vehicles and to use 
the system as a Fleet Management system. 

This should include recording all service and 
MOT dates to ensure that schedules can be 
produced based on system data. 

Medium Original: 
30 September 

2013 

Revised to: 
April 2014 

Waste & 
Recycling 
Service 

Manager 

4 Superseded 

Following a recent review of working practices, it 
has been determined that reliance cannot be 
placed on the Roadbase System for ensuring 
vehicles are serviced and MOTed at correct 
intervals, consequently management have 
decided to retain the manual system currently in 
place. 

3.11.8 5.13/14 Fleet Management 

a) The Vehicle Replacement Programme should 
clearly state the actual expected replacement 
date for each vehicle, including those which have 
been extended from original expectation dates. 

b) The Programme should be formally reported to 
the Service Director for approval and should be 
shared with all relevant Service Managers who 
have been assigned use of Council vehicles. 

Medium Original: 
30 September 

2013 

Revised to: 
April 2014 

Waste & 
Recycling 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Waste & Recycling Manager 
identified that a Vehicle Replacement Programme 
has been devised. 

This identifiesthat all vehicles are initially 
assessed on a 7 year turn around, but this may 
be revised each year as part of the budget setting 
process, if particular vehicles have shorter or 
longer livesthan expected.  



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 24 

3.11 29.13/14 FOLLOW UP (JANUARY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

A review of the programme identified that against 
each vehicle there is a year of replacement 
stated, except for those where there is no 
planned replacement, in which case it states 
“when vehicle worn out”. For these with a 
replacement date less than 7 sevens, this is 
stated. 

Any vehicle past its replacement date is 
assessed has a cost effective asset 

3.11.9 5.13/14 Fleet Management 

Staff should be reminded to submit their Driving 
licences for checking on a regular basis. 

The Council should consider its current policy 
with regards to the requirement for staff to inform 
their line manager immediately of any penalty 
points obtained to ensure the manager can make 
an informed decision on whether the staff 
member remains appropriate to drive Council 
Fleet. This should apply to the checking process 
where penalty points are noted on the drivers 
licence, guidance should be developed to state 
whether action needs to be taken when penalty 
points are received. 

Medium Original: 
30 September 

2013 

Revised to: 
April 2014 

Waste & 
Recycling 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Waste & Recycling Manager 
identified that e-mails were issued in November 
2013 and March 2014 reminding Service 
Managers of the checks they should be 
undertaking, including: 

· Driving licences (paper and card). 

· Current motor insurance certificate 
providing cover for business use (where 
staff vehicles are used). 

· Current MOT certificate. 

The Operations Director informed us that a 
decision has been taken to now include the 
requirement to request/declare penalty points, a 
decision onofficers’ use of fleet vehicles following 
the declaration of points will be made on a case 
by case basis. 

3.11.10 10.13/14 Waste and Recycling 

Management should ensure the Refuse and 
Waste Collection Policy is finalised and approved 
by the responsible Strategic Director and then 
reviewed every three years. 

Medium Original: 
30 September 

2013 

Revised to: 
February 

2014 

Waste & 
Recycling 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Waste & Recycling Manager 
informed us that the Refuse and Waste Collection 
Policy has been finalised and has been approved 
by the Operations Director. 

This was confirmed with the Operations Director. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 25 

3.11 29.13/14 FOLLOW UP (JANUARY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.11.11 10.13/14 Waste and Recycling 

Spot checks should be undertaken at least every 
quarter, as per the procedure. 

Medium Original: 
31 August 

2013 

Revised to: 
April 2014 

Waste & 
Recycling 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Discussion with the Waste & Recycling Manager 
identified that the Health & Safety Compliance 
Officer currently conducts monitoring checks 
which are recorded on monitoring sheets 
developed for the various activities undertaken 
within the department. The Health & Safety 
Compliance Officer joined the Team in November 
2013 with a total of 20 checks undertaken from 
December 2013 to the time of the follow-up 
review in May 2014, with documentation 
electronically scanned and saved in a folder.  

At present, spot checks are undertaken as and 
when resources permit. The Health & Safety 
Compliance Officer informed us that the 
frequency of checks has increased from March 
2014 and will increase further when the Waste 
Team is at full capacity. 

3.11.12 10.13/14 Waste and Recycling 

The monitoring spreadsheet should be reviewed 
to include extra columns for 'issues 
identified/non- conformances', and 'action taken', 
to record the information on the monitoring forms. 

This would then enable the Operations Team 
Leader to maintain an overview of the issues 
requiring rectification, and a central point of 
reference to identify where improvements are 
required and the actions taken.  

Medium Original: 
31 August 

2013 

Revised to: 
April 2014 

Waste & 
Recycling 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

The Waste & Recycling Manager informed us 
that the monitoring sheets had been reviewed 
and considered not to require amending. The 
current sheets include columns for comments on 
actions to be taken and target completion dates. 

3.11.13 10.13/14 Waste and Recycling 

All new starters should be reassessed 'on the job' 
to ensure they fully understand their induction 
and can safely apply the principles taught. 

Medium Original: 
31 August 

2013 

Revised to: 
Ongoing 

Waste & 
Recycling 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

The Waste & Recycling Manager informed us 
that new starters undergo an induction 
programme. All new starters are issued with a 
copy of the slides of the Health & Safety for 
Waste & Recycling Employees PowerPoint 
presentation. 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 26 

3.11 29.13/14 FOLLOW UP (JANUARY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status 
Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

The Health & Safety Compliance Officer holds 
regular ‘toolbox talks’ with the Team to provide 
additional information and training on issues 
identified from the monitoring checks and other 
issues raised by the Team. The Supervisor 
advised that these talks are delivered to all staff 
within the Team with monitoring checks 
undertaken by the Health & Safety Compliance 
Officer and annual Performance Development 
Reviews. 

The two Supervisors carry out ‘on the job’ 
reviews of staff, maintaining a record of the 
review carried out. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 27 

Appendix A: Definitions for Progress Made 
The following opinions are given on the progress made in implementing recommendations. 

This opinion relates solely to the implementation of those recommendations followed up and not does not reflect an opinion on the entire control environment. 

Progress in 
implementing 

recommendations 

Overall number of 
recommendations 
fully implemented 

Consideration of high 
recommendations 

Consideration of medium 
recommendations 

Consideration of low 
recommendations 

Good 75% + None outstanding. None outstanding. 
All low recommendations outstanding 

are in the process of being 
implemented. 

Adequate 51 - 75% None outstanding. 
75% of medium recommendations 
made are in the process of being 

implemented. 

75% of low recommendations made are 
in the process of being implemented. 

Little 30 - 50% 
All high recommendations outstanding 

are in the process of being 
implemented. 

50% of medium recommendations 
made are in the process of being 

implemented. 

50% of low recommendations made are 
in the process of being implemented. 

Poor < 30% 
Unsatisfactory progress has been made 

to implement high recommendations. 

Unsatisfactory progress has been made 
to implement medium 

recommendations. 

Unsatisfactory progress has been made 
to implement low recommendations. 

 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 28 

Appendix B: Data to Support our Opinion 

Implementation Status by Review 

Review 
Total No. 
of recs 
agreed. 

Status of Recommendation Audit work 
confirmed as 

completed or no 
longer 

necessary 

No of recs 
carried forward 
for follow up at 

next review 

Not due for 
implementation 

Implemented 
Implementation 

Ongoing 
Not Implemented Superseded 

(5) (1) (2) (3) (4) (1)+(4) (2)+(3)+(5) 

07.13/14 Car Parks 
(Enforcement) 

4 0 3 1 0 0 3 1 

09.13/14 Leisure 
Management 
Contract 

3 0 3 0 0 0 3 0 

11.13/14 Reactive 
Repairs and 
Maintenance 

1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 

14.13/14 Follow Up 
(October 2013) 

5 0 3 2 0 0 3 2 

15.13/14 Payroll & 
Expenses 

1 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 

17.13/14 Bourne 
Community Access 
Point 

2 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 

20.13/14 Absence 
Management 

1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 

22.13/14 Benefits 
Fraud Investigation 
Unit 

1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 

26.13/14 Economic 
Development 

2 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 29 

27.13/14 
Consultation and 
Communications - 
Stakeholder Contact 

1 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 

29.13/14 Follow Up 
(January 2014) 

13 0 7 3 2 1 8 5 

Total 
34 0 23 8 2 1 24 10 

100% 0% 68% 23% 6% 3% 71% 29% 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 30 

Implementation Status of Recommendations by Category 

Recommendation 
Category 

Total No. 
of recs 
agreed. 

Status of Recommendation Audit work 
confirmed as 

completed or no 
longer 

necessary 

No of recs 
carried forward 
for follow up at 

next review 

Not due for 
implementation 

Implemented 
Implementation 

Ongoing 
Not Implemented Superseded 

(5) (1) (2) (3) (4) (1)+(4) (2)+(3)+(5) 

High 4 0 4 0 0 0 4 0 

Medium 30 0 19 8 2 1 20 10 

Total 
34 0 23 8 2 1 24 10 

100% 0% 68% 23% 6% 3% 71% 29% 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 31 

Appendix C: Review of Completeness 

2012/13 Reports 

All 2012/13 Reports have now been Followed Up 

2013/14 Reports Followed Up 

Review 

Number of Recommendations 
Follow-up 

Report 
Reference 

Agreed To Be 
Followed Up 

Not To Be 
Followed Up 

By IA 

1.13/14 Pool Cars 7 4 3 29.13/14 

2.13/14 Follow Up 1 1  29.13/14 

3.13/14 Corporate Governance 2 0 2 29.13/14 

4.13/14 Code of Conduct and Register of 
Interests 

1 0 1 29.13/14 

5.13/14 Fleet Management 6 3 3 29.13/14 

6.13/14 Disabled Facilities Grants 1 0 1 29.13/14 

7.13/14 Car Parks (Enforcement) 7 4 3 This Review 

8.13/14 Income Collection 3 0 3 29.13/14 

9.13/14 Leisure Management Contract 4 3 1 This Review 

10.13/14 Waste and Recycling 6 4 2 29.13/14 

11.13/14 Reactive Repairs and Maintenance 5 1 4 This Review 

12.13/14 Stamford Car Parking Income 0 0 (Advisory)  This Review 

13.13/14 Licensing 0 0  This Review 

14.13/14 Follow Up 5 5  This Review 

15.13/14 Payroll & Expenses 1 1  This Review 

17.13/14 Bourne Community Access Point 4 2 2 This Review 

18.13/14 Investigation - Council Vehicle Usage 0 0 (Advisory)  This Review 

20.13/14 Absence Management 2 1 1 This Review 

22.13/14 Benefits Fraud Investigation Unit 4 1 3 This Review 

24.13/14 Treasury Management 1 0 1 This Review 

25.13/14 Risk Management 0 0  This Review 

26.13/14 Economic Development 3 2 1 This Review 

27.13/14 Consultation and Communications - 
Stakeholder Contact 

4 1 3 This Review 

28.13/14 Medium Term Financial Strategy 1 0 1 This Review 

29.13/14 Follow Up (January 2014) 13 13  This Review 



 Follow Up 
1.14/15 

 

South Kesteven District Council | 32 

2013/14 Reports To Be Followed Up 

Review 

Number of Recommendations 
Follow-up 

Report 
Reference 

Agreed To Be 
Followed Up 

Not To Be 
Followed Up 

By IA 

16.13/14 Planning 6 3 3 N/A 

19.13/14 Staff Engagement and Communication 6 0 (Advisory) 6 N/A 

21.13/14 Members Allowances and Expenses  8 1 7 N/A 

23.13/14 Leases 5 2 3 N/A 

30.13/14 Allocations and Lettings (including Void 
Management) 

3 2 1 N/A 

31.13/14 Information Security Management 
System (ISMS) 

2 1 1 N/A 

 



 Page 1

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE  

 
REPORT OF: HEAD OF FINANCE  
 
REPORT NO:  HOF278 
 
DATE:      26 June 2014 
 

TITLE: 
 

Risk Management Annual Report 2013-14 &  
Corporate Risk Register Update 

KEY DECISION  
OR POLICY 
FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

None 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION: 

Councillor Paul Carpenter 
Governance and Communication Portfolio Holder 

CONTACT 
OFFICER: 

Tracey Elliott 
Governance & Risk Officer 
t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk  
Tel: (01476) 406038 

INITIAL 
IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
Equality and 
Diversity 

Carried out and  
Referred to in paragraph (7) 
below: 
 
N/A 

Full impact assessment 
Required: 
 
 
No 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT: 

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and Democracy 
link on the Council’s website: www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 
 

HOF260 – Risk Management Update including  
Corporate Risk Register 21 November 2013 
 
The above reports can be located by putting their reference 
number in the search section of the committee website via the 

link below: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDocSearch.aspx?bcr=1 

 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Governance & Audit Committee is requested to: 
 
i) note the contents of this report 
ii) review and approve the latest version of the Corporate Risk Register attached 

as Appendix A 

Agenda Item 10



 Page 2

 
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee it is a requirement to 
produce an annual report on the risk management arrangements in place and the 
activities undertaken.  Risk Management is fundamental to the Council’s achievement 
of its strategic objectives.  The report being presented covers the 2013-14 period and 
details the various aspects of work delivered during the course of the year.   
 
3. DETAILS OF REPORT  
 
Risk Management Strategy 
 
The Risk Management Strategy remains unchanged with the next review is due to be 
undertaken in 2015 to ensure it remains fit for purpose and in line with the Council’s 
risk management requirements. 
 
Risk Management Internal Audit 
 
During the course of the year, and as part of the internal audit work plan for 2013-14, 
an audit was undertaken on the effectiveness of the risk management arrangements in 
place across the Council.  The review focussed on ensuring that the current risk 
management processes are embedded within the Council and that all identified risks 
and controls are in place and agreed actions are followed up on a timely basis.  This is 
to ensure that the Council has an adequate Risk Management Framework in place 
which is sufficient to identify, monitor and mitigate the risks that it faces. 
 
The development and maintenance of an effective risk management system and 
assurance framework is a key element for providing on-going assurance to 
management and Members over the effectiveness of controls identified to mitigate 
principal risks that threaten the achievement of strategic objectives. 
 
The review took into account all aspects of how the Council manages risk.  As part of 
the review internal audit identified that the Council has continued to monitor its 
Corporate and Service Risks as part of a formalised process and that changes in the 
Service Risk profile have been reported where appropriate for consideration on the 
Corporate Risk Register, showing that the Council has a level of understanding 
between the relationship between its risks. 
 
Taking account of there being no issues identified, the Council was given a substantial 
assurance that the controls upon which the organisation relies to manage risk are 
suitably designed, consistently applied and effective. 
 
The report itself was presented to the Committee at its meeting in January 2014. 
 
Risk Management Group 
 
Risk Management Group, consisting of all Service Managers or Team Leaders and 
chaired by the Governance & Risk Officer, meets bimonthly to discuss Risk 
Management and issues relating to Internal Audit, Insurance, Counter Fraud and 
Governance. 
 



 Page 3

During the year the group has looked at a number of areas such as updating the 
Internal Audit Protocol in order to ensure that officers are fully aware of the 
expectations and requirements for engaging with Internal Audit.  An overview of 
insurance claims is a regular agenda item and ongoing issues are also discussed and 
relevant officer training is provided where necessary. 
 
Guidance and Support 
 

During 2013/14 the Council continued to support and provide guidance to officers on 
the approach to risk management.  Risk awareness training continues to feature in the 
corporate training programme for all new staff to ensure that they have an awareness 
of the Authority’s attitude to risk management and an understanding of the 
methodology used. 
 
Service Risk Register 
 
A refresh exercise on service risks was undertaken with Service Managers in 
November 2013.  The exercise assessed if: 
 
a) All the previous risks identified were still relevant 
b) How well those risks were being managed and what controls were in place 
c) There were any emerging risks that needed to be included 
 
The review covered both the ‘business as usual’ and ‘exceptional’ risks.  The 
exceptional risks are those risks which are scored as high or they may be a new risk to 
the service which is causing sufficient concern to warrant inclusion on the Exceptional 
Service Risk Register which is further discussed at Risk Management Group.  The 
risks are also being managed through the Council’s corporate risk management 
system. 
 
A further refresh exercise is currently being undertaken and the Exceptional Service 
Risk Register will be discussed at Risk Management Group in July 2014 for peer 
challenge to ensure the scoring and weighting is in line with other areas.  Another 
further review is planned for November 2014 in preparation for incorporation into the 
service planning process for 2014/15. 
 
Corporate Risk Register 
 
The Committee last approved the Corporate Risk Register at the November meeting.  
In order to ensure the risk register is up to date and fit for purpose, a recent review has 
been undertaken with the Heads of Service to refresh existing risks to ensure they 
remain relevant and identify any other emerging risks.  Consideration and review of 
the Corporate Risk Register is undertaken at Management Team every quarter.   
 
The updated Corporate Risk Register is attached as Appendix A.  Whilst this has not 
resulted in any new risks being included, the risks have been reviewed and a number 
of updates have been made.  These include the removal of: 
 

• Failure to integrate new localised performance framework together with local 
measures linked to priority actions – The Performance Management Framework 
is now embedded and ensures that key priority actions are delivered or reviewed 



 Page 4

as necessary.  This risk has therefore been removed from the register as it is now 
deemed business as usual and is adequately resourced. 
 

• Failure to keep the public and parishes informed on Council priorities and 
issues – The Communication Plan and the Consultation & Engagement Strategy 
are in line with our priorities and there is the commitment to continually engage with 
the community.  The Citizen’s Panel has had a very successful first year and there 
continues to be regular newsletters to the community, tenants, parishes etc.  This 
risk has therefore been removed from the register as, like the previous risk, the 
work is now embedded and has become part of the core business. 

 

Conclusion 
 
Members have been kept informed during the course of the year on the risk 
management activities being undertaken which this annual report has brought together 
to provide an overview of the achievements.  These include: 
 

• Having in place a ‘fit for purpose’ Risk Management Strategy 

• Internal engagement and guidance for officers through the Risk Management 
Group 

• Continued training and support during the course of the year 

• Having in place effective risk management arrangements as independently 
reviewed by Internal Audit 

• Review and enhancement of both the Service and Corporate Risk Register reviews 
to ensure they are up to date and relevant 

 
In summary, the Council has continued to make good progress in embedding risk 
management across the Council.  With internal audit supporting the view that the 
Council has in place effective risk management the focus for the coming year will be to 
maintain the building blocks put in place. 
 

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
None 
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/ budget, 
people, land/property etc. 
 
 
6. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA 
         QUALITY) 
 
None 
 
7. ISSUES ARISING FROM EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
None 
 
 
 



 Page 5

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
9. COMMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
These are contained within the report. 
 
10. COMMENT OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 
Members of the Committee are responsible on behalf of the Council for monitoring 
actions taken by Cabinet and Management Team to identify corporate business risks 
and assess whether they are being effectively managed.  It is essential they are kept 
up to date with details of the risks and how they have been mitigated. 
 
11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICE MANAGER 
 
None 
 
12.     APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register 



Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register – June 2014           

            

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Type 

Risk 
(the risk is that...) 

Cause 
(... would cause the 

risk to occur) 

Consequences of 
uncontained risk 
(time, cost etc) 

Mitigation measures to 
reduce effect of risk 

I
m

p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

R
is

k
 S

c
o

r
e
 

Actions 

1 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l A sustainable Medium 
Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) is not achieved 
 
Head of Finance 

• Changes to formula 

grant distribution 
methodology (Non 
Domestic Rate)  

• Localisation and 
introduction of Council 
Tax support  

• Collection rates being 
affected by welfare 
reform  

• Reduction in and ability 
to collect income due to 
the authority could 
compromise the delivery 
of council priorities  

• Scenario planning in order to 
model potential national 
changes   

• MTFP underpinning delivery of 
corporate plan in order to 
ensure priority actions are 
deliverable and affordable  

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Updated MTFS for the next 5 years detailing 
actions in order to maintain a sustainable 
financial position  

2. Delivery of transformational programme 
with key actions aimed at ensuring annual 
balanced budget and medium term financial 
sustainability  

2 

P
a
r
tn

e
rs

h
ip

 

There is a loss of 
partnerships/Service 
Level Agreements 
(SLA’s), income or 
grant funding 

• Ongoing projects or 
priority plans which 
have a dependency on 
external financial 
support 

• Resource issues to 
deliver partnership 
driven projects or 
increase in financial 
pressures 

• Keep abreast of Government 
plans and ensure coordinated 
and managed approach  

• Ensure regular monitoring of 
SLA's, partnerships and 
funding  

• Ensure performance 
information is regularly 
monitored, reviewed and 
reported 

• Ensure effective 
communication and regular 
liaison with partners, funding 
bodies and staff etc  

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 1. Develop and implement governance 
structure utilising Bridge toolkit 
methodology  

2. Regularly review performance and actions 
of partnerships and identify risks when 
necessary 

3 

E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 Failure to deliver 

against the Grantham 
Growth priorities 
 
Growth & Business Investment 

Manager 

• Economic uncertainty  
• No tradition as an 

office market location  
• Insufficient funding for 

public sector 
interventions  

• Failure to adequately 
plan for infrastructure 
required to deliver 
growth 

• Out-migration of 
businesses to alternative 
locations  

• Lost opportunity for 
inward investment and 
growth of indigenous 
companies  

• Loss of market share in 
retailing  

• Difficulty in selling 
Grantham as a retail 
destination to investors 

• Ensure key projects are 
realistically assessed having 
regard to funding and local 
economic/market factors  

• Lobby Central Government 
Policy makers 

• Ensure views of key partners 
and stakeholders are sought 
and formalised 

• Appropriate planning 
framework with proactive and 
managed programme of 

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Bid for Public Sector funding where benefits 
of doing so are agreed 

2. Secure developer obligations to deliver 
appropriate infrastructure  

3. Continue investment in town centre  
4. Market opportunities for investment in 

Grantham 
5. Utilise SKDC assets to lead and/or catalyse 

investment in the district 
6. Support development of skills through 

formal agreements with Private sector 
developers 



Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register – June 2014           

            

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Type 

Risk 
(the risk is that...) 

Cause 
(... would cause the 

risk to occur) 

Consequences of 
uncontained risk 
(time, cost etc) 

Mitigation measures to 
reduce effect of risk 

I
m

p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

R
is

k
 S

c
o

r
e
 

Actions 

and shoppers  

• Unemployment  
• Continued search for 

modern office market in 
the town centre  

• Town centre congestion  

implementation 
7. Progress Planning Policy Framework for 

South Kesteven to ensure that the right 
sites are available for growth/expansion  

8. Actively manage implementation of current 
policy framework  

4 

E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

Failure to identify and 
implement actions to 
support the community 
and businesses to 
minimise the effects of 
the economic 
downturn  
 
 

Strategic Lead for Economic 

Development & Regeneration  

• Economic uncertainty  
• Insufficient funding for 

public sector 
interventions 

• Unable to respond 
adequately to closure 
of businesses   

• Failure to respond 
positively to 
opportunities as they 
arise  

 

• Unemployment leading 
to increased cost 
pressures such as 
housing benefits  

• Breakdown of supply 
chain  

• Loss of revenue linked to 
proposed changes to 
NDR grant distribution 
methodology  

• Poor perception of the 
viability of the District as 
a place to do business 
and invest 

• Ensure the views of key 
partners and stakeholders are 
sought 

• Ensure the vibrancy of market 
towns through local economic 
initiatives 

• Ensure key actions and 
interventions of council and 
partners are effectively 
promoted and managed 

• Ensure appropriate support 
available to local business 
community and the Council 
itself 

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Cultivate Business relationship management 
through Business Engagement Strategy and 
Action Plan 

2. Destination SK project scoped to attract 
inward investment and new business 

3. Delivery of Economic Development Strategy 
Action Plan 

4. Development of Cultural strategy 
5. Proposal to fund Business Support to 

replace loss of local Business Link capacity 
6. Enterprise Week 2014 

5 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

Failure to have robust 
plans and contingency 
arrangements in place 
to deal with the 
impacts of severe 
weather conditions or 
industrial action 

• Failure in provision of 
service 

• Staff shortages  
• Diminished service 

provision  
• Failure to meet 

customer's needs  
• Unable to respond to 

blue light services  

• Corporate Business Continuity 
Plan (BCP)  

• Service BCPs  
• Staff training and awareness  
• Emergency Plan 
• Extra guidance for industrial 

action circulated to key staff  

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Ensure BCPs and emergency plans are 
regularly reviewed and updated 

2. Ensure action to be taken is clearly 
communicated to relevant staff and the 
local community  



Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register – June 2014           

            

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Type 

Risk 
(the risk is that...) 

Cause 
(... would cause the 

risk to occur) 

Consequences of 
uncontained risk 
(time, cost etc) 

Mitigation measures to 
reduce effect of risk 

I
m

p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

R
is

k
 S

c
o

r
e
 

Actions 

6 

R
e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a
l 

(
I
n

te
rn

a
l)

 

Failure to recruit, and 
develop staff to meet 
changing customer 
demands and available 
resources 
 
Head of People, Projects & 

Performance 

• Failure to develop 
workforce strategy 
and inability to 
harness skills and 
development of key 
roles  

• Poor service delivery  
• Low staff morale  
• High turnover  
• Unmet customer 

expectations 

• Learning & Development Plan 
• People Strategy is now in place 
• Behavioural framework in 

place  
• Reward strategy being 

developed 
• Better understanding of 

customer needs 

2
 M

in
o

r
 

1
 U

n
li
k
e
ly

 

2
 L

o
w

 

1. Collation data to understand current and 

future customer needs 
2. Comprehensive People Strategy delivery 

plan in place to develop staff and harness 
skills across the organisation  

3. Strategic service review programme being 
developed  

Reduction in staff 
morale due to 
organisational change  
 
Head of People, Projects & 

Performance 

• Failure to manage the 
communication and 
effective 
implementation of 
organisational change  

• Loss of capacity  
• Increased levels of stress 

and sickness  
• Reduced service delivery  
• Failure to deliver 

priorities  
• Industrial action  

• The Council has developed an 
“Unlocking Our Potential” 
culture change programme to 
incorporate leadership, 
management, customer focus 
and performance 
management/delivery  

• Cohesive creating a flexible 
organisation programme 
developed 

2
 M

in
o

r
 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

4
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Continue to embed the culture change 
programme as part of overall People 
Strategy  

2. Promote the flexible organisation 
programme and engage staff in its rollout 

7 

T
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

Ability for ICT 
infrastructure and 
support systems to be 
adapted and 
configured in order to 
provide a resilient 
framework, specifically 
to meet the challenges 
of agile working and 
customer access 
strategy  
 
Head of Finance 

• Failure to implement 
and sustain a robust 
ICT infrastructure that 
is resilient and flexible 
enough to meet the 
challenge of the 
delivery of an agile 
workforce 

• Aging ICT hardware 
and network  

• Pressures on ICT 
platform causing 
difficulties to deliver 
quality services and 
creating an inflexible ICT 
infrastructure  

• ICT strategy setting out 
roadmap for development  

• Close linkages to corporate 
priorities 

• Review of service resourcing 
and opportunities for 
partnerships  

3
 M

a
jo

r 

1
 U

n
li
k
e
ly

 

3
 L

o
w

 1. ICT strategy approved and action being 
implemented 

2. ICT Steering Group meets regularly to 
monitor progress of actions introduced 

 

  



Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register – June 2014           

            

 


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 MARCH 2014
	7 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2013/14
	8 ADHERENCE TO PUBLIC SERVICE INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARD
	HOF279 Appendix A Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

	9 INTERNAL AUDIT TRACKING REPORT
	10 RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
	HOF278 Appendix A Corporate Risk Register


